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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

PART I
ltem 1. Business:

Weis Markets, Inc. is a Pennsylvania business fedrny Harry and Sigmund Weis in 1912 and incorparét 1924. The Company
is engaged principally in the retail sale of foadPiennsylvania and surrounding states. There wasaterial change in the nature of
the Company's business during fiscal 2016. Thepamy's stock has been traded on the New York Sfockange since 1965
under the symbol “WMK.” The Weis family currentbyvns approximately 65% of the outstanding shademathan H. Weis serves
as Chairman of the Board of Directors, Presidedt@hief Executive Officer.

The Company's retail food stores sell groceriesy gaoducts, frozen foods, meats, seafood, fresdyrce, floral, pharmacy services,
deli products, prepared foods, bakery products; &ee wine, fuel and general merchandise itemd) aschealth and beauty care and
household products. The Company advertises idysts and promotes its brand through weekly newespaipculars; radio ads; e-
mail blasts; and on-line via its web site, socialdia and mobile applications. Printed circulass@sed extensively on a weekly basis
to advertise featured items. The Company utilezé&syalty marketing program, “Weis Club Preferrdtbfper,” which enables
customers to receive discounts, promotions andravedrds. The Company currently owns and ope2dgetail food stores. The
Company’s operations are reported as a single tapersegment.

The following table provides additional detail dre tpercentage of consolidated net sales contribytgrtoduct category for fiscal
years 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively:

2016 2015 2014
Center Store (1) 57.0% 57.5% 57.9%
Fresh (2) 30.3 29.7 29.0
Pharmacy Services 9.5 9.4 9.0
Fuel 3.0 3.2 3.9
Other 0.2 0.2 0.2
Consolidated net sales 100.0% 100.0 % 100.90

(1) Consists primarily of groceries, dairy prodydtszen foods, beer and wine, and general merdbaiitgéms, such as health and beauty care and
household products.
(2) Consists primarily of meats, seafood, fresidpo®, floral, deli products, prepared foods andcebakroducts.

At the end of 2016, Weis Markets, Inc. operatetbdes in Delaware, 50 stores in Maryland, 5 stardéew Jersey, 9 stores in New
York, 121 stores in Pennsylvania, 13 stores in iiegand 2 stores in West Virginia, for a total®4 retail food stores operating
under the Weis Markets trade name.



WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Item 1. Business: (continued)

All retail food store locations operate as convamai supermarkets. The retail food stores rangézefrom 8,000 to 70,000 square
feet, with an average size of approximately 48 8f@are feet. The following summarizes the numbstares by size categories as
of year-end:

2016 2016 2015 2015
Square feet Number of stores % of Total Number ofteres % of Total
55,000 to 70,000 58 28% 57 35%
45,000 to 54,999 70 34% 69 42%
35,000 to 44,999 53 26% 22 13%
25,000 to 34,999 18 9% 9 6%
Under 25,000 5 3% 6 4%
Total 204 100% 163 100%

The following schedule shows the changes in thebaurof retail food stores, total square footage stode additions/remodels as of
year-end:

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Beginning store count 163 163 165 163 161
New stores (I 44 1 4 4
Opened relocated stores 1 1 1
Closed stores ) 3) (2) 2)
Closed relocated stores Q) @ Q)
Ending store count 204 163 163 165 163
Total square feet (000’s), at year-end 9,777 8,215 8,202 8,211 8,054
Additions/major remodels 9 16 8 12 13

(1) OnJune 11, 2012, Weis Markets, Inc. acquinegle former Genuardi’s stores located in ConshisdrocDoylestown and Norristown,
Pennsylvania from Safeway Inc. In the third andarfio quarter of 2016, Weis Markets acquired fivierfer Mars Super Market stores located in
Baltimore County, Maryland; 38 former Food Lion 8umarket stores located in Maryland, Virginia areldware; and one former Nell’'s Family
Market store located in East Berlin, Pennsylvania.

The Company supports its retail operations thraugkntrally located distribution facility, its owransportation fleet, three
manufacturing facilities and its administrativeioés. The Company is required to use a signifieambunt of working capital to
provide for the necessary amount of inventory t@tngemand for its products through efficient usbwfing power and effective
utilization of space in its distribution facilitiesSThe manufacturing facilities consist of a meatgessing plant, an ice cream plant and
a milk processing plant.

The Company operates in a highly competitive mapkate. The number and the variety of competitary by market. The
Company’s principal competition consists of intaimaal, national, regional and local food chairsyell as independent food stores.
The Company also faces substantial competition tonvenience stores, membership warehouse clubsiadly retailers,
supercenters and large-scale drug and pharmadethimas. The Company continues to effectively peta by offering a strong
combination of value, quality and service.

The Company currently employs approximately 23 fiitime and part-time associates.



WEIS MARKETS, INC.

tem 1. Business: (continued)

Trade Names and Trademarks. The Company has invested significantly in tegedopment and protection of “Weis Markets”
both as a trade name and a trademark and congitietse an important asset. The Company is tlodusive licensee of nearly 100
trademarks registered and/or pending in the UrBtiatles Patent and Trademark Office from WMK Holdirlgc., including
trademarks for its product lines and promotionhsag Weis, Weis 2 Go, Weis Wonder Chicken, Prieefe, Weis Gas-n-Go and
Weis Nutri-Facts. Each trademark registratioroisai initial period of 10 years and may be renes@tbng as it is in continued use
in commerce.

The Company considers its trademarks to be of ma&terportance to its business and actively defeantts enforces its rights.

The Company maintains a corporate web sitgvalv.weismarkets.comThe Company makes available, free of chargehen
“Financial” page of the “Corporate Information” e of its web site, its Annual Reports on FormKL,Oquarterly reports on Form
10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendmentisase reports filed or furnished pursuant to $ecti3(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably practicaldeta#t Company electronically files such materiaiuonishes it to the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) by cligckinm the “SEC Information” link.

The Company’s Corporate Governance materials cdourel on the”Governance” page of the “Corporaferimation” section of its
web site. These materials include the Corporatee@ance Guidelines; the Charters of the Auditn@ensation and Disclosure
Committees; and both the Code of Business CondutEthics and the Code of Ethics for the CEO an® CRA copy of the
foregoing corporate governance materials is aviglapon written request to the Company’s princiadcutive offices.

Item 1a. Risk Factors:

In addition to risks and uncertainties in the oadyncourse of business common to all businessgmriamt factors are listed below
specific to the Company and its industry, whichldauaterially impact its future performance.

The Company'’s industry is highly competitive. If he Company is unable to compete effectively, the @pany’s financial
condition and results of operations could be mateaily affected.

The retail food industris intensely price competitive, and the competitioen Company encounters may have a negative ingpact
product retail prices. The operating environmemnttimues to be characterized by aggressive expansitry of non-traditional
competitors, market consolidation and increasiagrrentation of retail and online formats. Theffitial results may be adversely
impacted by a competitive environment that couldseathe Company to reduce retail prices withotdaiction in its product cost to
maintain market share; thus reducing sales and gmadit margins.

The trade area of the Company is located within aggion and is subject to the economic, social androlte variables of that
region.

The majority of the Company'’s stores are concesdrait central and northeast Pennsylvania, centeaylnd, suburban
Washington, DC and Baltimore regions and New YoBadaithern Tier. Changes in economic and socialitions in the Company’s
operating regions, including fluctuations in thédtion rate along with changes in population ampbyment and job growth rates,
affect customer shopping habits. These changesegstively impact sales and earnings. Businessmtions due to weather and
catastrophic events historically have been fewe Tbhmpany’s geographic regions could receive amemé variance in the amount
of annual snowfall that may materially affect sadesl expense results.

The Company may be unable to retain key managemepersonnel.

The Company's success depends to a significanéeegron the continued contributions of senior manmamnt. The loss of any key
member of management may prevent the Company frgrteimenting its business plans in a timely manmerddition,
employment conditions specifically may affect then@pany’s ability to hire and train qualified assdes.

Food safety issues could result in the loss of camser confidence in the Company.

Customers count on the Company to provide them séfa and wholesome food products. Concerns reggtite safety of food
products sold in its stores could cause shoppeaasdm purchasing certain products from the Companyo seek alternative sources
of supply for all of their food needs, even if thesis for the concern is outside of the Compangigrol. A loss in confidence on the
part of its customers would be difficult and cogtiyeestablish. As such, any issue regardingalfiety of any food items sold by the
Company, regardless of the cause, could have @asiilad and adverse effect on operations.



WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Item la. Risk Factors: (continued)

The failure to execute expansion plans could haveraaterial adverse effect on the Company's businessid results of its
operations.

Circumstances outside the Company’s control coalghtively impact anticipated capital investmentstore, distribution and
manufacturing projects, information technology aadipment. The Company cannot determine with icgytavhether its new or
acquired stores will meet expected benefits inclgdamong other things, operating efficienciescprement savings, innovation,
sharing of best practices and increased markeé shat may allow for future growth. Achieving theticipated benefits may be
subject to a number of significant challenges amckutainties, including, without limitation, the gmibility of imprecise assumptions
underlying expectations regarding potential syresgind the integration process, unforseen expanskedelays diverting
management’s time and attention and competitiviofaén the marketplace.

Disruptions or security breaches in the Company’sriformation technology systems could adversely affecesults.

The Company’s business is highly dependent on cexripformation technology systems that are vitdatda@ontinuing operations. If
the Company was to experience difficulties maintajrexisting systems or implementing new systenggificant losses could be
incurred due to disruptions in its operations. fiddally, these systems contain valuable propnetiata as well as receipt and
storage of personal information about its assogiat®l customers, in particular electronic paymata dnd personal health
information that, if breached, would have an ade@f$ect on the Company. Such an occurrence amidrsely affect the
Company’s reputation with its customers, assocjaed vendors, as well as the Company’s operatiess)ts of operations,
financial condition and liquidity, and could resiultlitigation against the Company or the impositaf penalties.

The Company is affected by certain operating costshich could increase or fluctuate considerably.

Associate expenses contribute to the majority efGompany’s operating costs. The Company's fimhperformance is potentially
affected by increasing wage and benefit costsngpetitive labor market, regulatory wage increasesthe risk of unionized labor
disruptions of its non-union workforce. The Comyparprofit is particularly sensitive to the costadf Oil prices directly affect the
Company's product transportation costs, as wetbastility and petroleum-based supply costs. |dbaffects the costs of its
suppliers, which impacts its cost of goods.

Various aspects of the Company’s business are subjdo federal, state and local laws and regulations

The Company is subject to various federal, statklaral laws, regulations and administrative paedithat affect the Company’s
business. The Company must comply with numeroogigions regulating health and sanitation standdoael labeling, equal
employment opportunity, minimum wages and licengorghe sale of food, drugs and alcoholic bevesagehe Company’s
compliance with these regulations may require @mtthl capital expenditures and could adverselycattee Company’s ability to
conduct the Company’s business as planned. Maragerannot predict either the nature of future lawgulations, interpretations
or applications, or the effect either additionatgmment regulations or administrative orders, wéea if promulgated, or disparate
federal, state, and local regulatory schemes woal@ on the Company’s future business. They cdwldiever, require the
reformulation of certain products to meet new stéadd, the recall or discontinuance of certain petglnot able to be reformulated,
additional record keeping, expanded documentatidheoproperties of certain products, expandediféerént labeling and/or
scientific substantiation. Any or all of such r@gments could have an adverse effect on the Coypagsults of operations and
financial condition.
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Item la. Risk Factors: (continued)

Unexpected factors affecting self-insurance claimsnd reserve estimates could adversely affect the @pany.

The Company uses a combination of insurance afdhselrance to provide for potential liabilitiesrfaworkers' compensation,
general liability, vehicle accident, property arsd@ciate medical benefit claims. Management egtisithe liabilities associated with
the risks retained by the Company, in part, by @rgg historical claims experience, demographid severity factors and other
actuarial assumptions which, by their nature, abgext to a high degree of variability. Any project of losses concerning workers’
compensation and general liability is subject togih degree of variability. Among the causes of trariability are unpredictable
external factors affecting future inflation ratdscount rates, litigation trends, legal interptietas, benefit level changes and claim
settlement patterns.

Changes in tax laws may result in higher income tax

The Company's future effective tax rate may in@desm current rates due to changes in laws andttitas of pending items with
various taxing authorities. Currently, the Compaeyefits from a combination of its corporate dtite and certain state tax laws.

The Company’s investment portfolio may suffer lossefrom changes in market interest rates and changeés market
conditions which could adversely affect results dhcome or liquidity.

The Company’s marketable securities consist of oipai bonds and equity securities. The municipaldinvestments are subject
to general credit, liquidity, market and interesterrisks. Substantially all of these securitiessabject to interest rate and credit risk
and will decline in value if interest rates incre@as one of the issuers’ credit ratings is reducgsla result, the Company may
experience a reduction in value or loss of liqyidibm investments, which may have a negative ihpadche Company’s results of
operations, liquidity and financial condition.

The Company is a controlled Company due to the comam stock holdings of the Weis family.

The Weis family’s share ownership represents apprately 65% of the combined voting power of the @amy’s common stock as
of December 31, 2016. As a result, the Weis faimély the power to elect a majority of the Compadyrsctors and approve any
action requiring the approval of the shareholdéth® Company, including adopting certain amendsémthe Company's charter
and approving mergers or sales of substantiallgfathe Company’s assets. Currently, one of then@amy’s five directors is a
member of the Weis family.

Changes in vendor promaotions or allowances, includg the way vendors target their promotional spendig, and the
Company's ability to effectively manage these progms could significantly impact margins and profitablity.

The Company cooperatively engages in a varietyafptional programs with its vendors. As the gartissess the results of
specific promotions and plan for future promotiathg nature of these programs and the allocatiatolidirs among them changes
over time. The Company manages these programaitttain or improve margins while at the same tineréasing sales. A
reduction in overall promotional spending or atshjf vendors in promotional spending away fromaiertypes of promotions that
the Company and its customers have historicallizaetl could have a significant impact on profitéiil

Item 1b. Unresolved Staff Comments:

There are no unresolved staff comments.
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ltem 2. Properties:

As of December 31, 2016, the Company owned andatge®3 of its retail food stores and leased amdatpd 111 stores under
operating leases that expire at various dates ¢wr@033. The Company owns all trade fixtures andpment in its stores and
several parcels of vacant land, which are availablcations for possible future stores or ottxpaasion.

The Company owns and operates one distributiorecémMilton, Pennsylvania of approximately 1.2 lioih square feet, and one in
Northumberland, Pennsylvania totaling approxima#dy000 square feet. The Company also owns oneheoase complex in
Sunbury, Pennsylvania totaling approximately 550,8uare feet. The Company utilizes 259,000 sdfeateof its Sunbury location
to operate its ice cream plant, meat processingt plad milk processing plant.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings:

Neither the Company nor any subsidiary is presemfharty to, nor is any of their property subjegtany pending legal proceedings,
other than routine litigation incidental to the mgss that would not have a material adverse effethe financial results. The
Company estimates any exposure to these legal guoages and establishes accruals for the estimitieitities, where it is
reasonably possible to estimate and where an szleetsome is probable.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following sets forth the names and ages o&hapany’s executive officers as of March 16, 20adicating all positions held
during the past five years:

Name Age Title

Jonathan H. Weis (a) 49 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeudfficer
Kurt A. Schertle (b) 45 Chief Operating Officer

Scott F. Frost (c) 54 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer andasurer
Wayne S. Bailey (d) 58 Senior Vice President of Supply Chain and Logistics

David W. Gose Il (e) 50 Senior Vice President of Operations

Harold G. Graber (f) 61 Senior Vice President of Real Estate and DevelopnSatretary
Richard A. Gunn (g) 52 Senior Vice President of Merchandising and Marlgetin
James E. Marcil (h) 58 Senior Vice President of Human Resources

(a) Jonathan H. Weis. The Company has employed Mr. Weis since 1989. Wiis served the Company as Vice President
of Property Management and Development from 1996 April 2002, at which time he was appointed ase/
President and Secretary. In January of 2004, dadappointed Mr. Weis as Vice Chairman and SaworetMr. Weis
became the Company's interim President and Chiefive Officer in September 2013 and was appoiagHresident
and Chief Executive Officer in February 2014. Buward elected Mr. Weis as Chairman of the Boar8lgril 2015.

(b) Kurt A. Schertle. The Company hired Mr. Schertle on March 1, 200Rsagice President of Sales and Merchandising,
which included the responsibility of overseeing tt@rketing Department. In February 2010, Mr. Sthewxas
promoted to Senior Vice President of Sales and Merdising. In July 2012, Mr. Schertle was promdteBxecutive
Vice President of Sales and Merchandising at wtiiok, he assumed the additional responsibility\&reeeing the
Company’s Supply Chain. In September 2013, MreBéhassumed the additional responsibility of egeing Store
Operations and Mr. Schertle was promoted to Chpr@ting Officer in March 2014.

(c) Scott F. Frost. Mr. Frost joined the Company full-time in 1984 d@mlhas held various positions since then, inclydin
but not limited to, Controller, Assistant Secretakgsistant Treasurer and Acting Chief Financidic@f. The
Company appointed Mr. Frost as Vice President, {Ghiencial Officer and Treasurer in October 2009 January
2011, Mr. Frost was promoted to Senior Vice Pragidghief Financial Officer and Treasurer.

(d) Wayne S. Bailey. Mr. Bailey joined the Company full-time in 1979cdhahe has held several positions since then,
including but not limited to, Grocery Manager, ®tddanager, District Manager, Director of Merchaimdjsand Sales
and Vice President of Operational Administration.January 2011, Mr. Bailey became a Regional Woesident and
in January 2013 he assumed the role of Vice PresafeSupply Chain and Logistics. In June 2016, Bhiley was
promoted to Senior Vice President of Supply Chaieh bogistics

(e) David W. Gose I1. Mr. Gose joined the Company in May 2014 as Senioe Wresident of Operations. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Gose was Senior Director and RegiGeneral Manager of Walmart Ohio, a retail store
SuperCenter, from February 2010 until May 2014.Indéat Ohio consisted of 92 stores that geograplicatiuded all
stores South of Toledo, Cleveland, Akron and Yotmgs.

)] Harold G. Graber. Mr. Graber joined the Company in October 1989 adiliector of Real Estate. Mr. Graber, who
served the Company as Vice President for Real &state 1996, was promoted to Senior Vice PresiofeReal Estate
and Development in February 2010. Mr. Graber vpgoBted as Secretary of the Company in Februaty 20

(9) Richard A. Gunn. Mr. Gunn joined the Company in May 2015 as the &e¥iice President of Merchandising and
Marketing. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Guwas employed by K-VA-T Food Stores, Inc. from M&99
through April 2015 and most recently served as Ettee Vice President of Merchandising and MarketikGgVA-T
Food Stores, Inc. is a regional supermarket chadhdistribution center operating in Virginia, Keoky and Tennessee.

(h) James E. Marcil. Mr. Marcil joined the Company in September 200%/&e President of Human Resources. In
February 2010, Mr. Marcil was promoted to Seniace/President of Human Resources.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Rdated Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases ofdgity Securities:
The Company's stock is traded on the New York SEathange (ticker symbol WMK). The approximate temof shareholders,

including individual participants in security pasit listings on December 31, 2016 as provided leyGbmpany's transfer agent was
5,808. High and low stock prices and dividendsl padr share for the last two fiscal years were:

2016 2015
Stock Price Dividend Stock Price Dividend
Quarter High Low Per Share High Low Per Share
First $ 46.6¢ $ 37.1¢ $ 03¢ $ 51.91 $ 45.3¢ $ 0.3C
Second 53.59 42.77 0.30 50.59 41.64 0.30
Third 55.4¢ 48.01 0.3C 43.9¢ 39.2¢ 0.3C
Fourth 68.40 51.56 0.30 46.39 38.56 0.30

The following line graph compares the yearly petaga change in the cumulative total shareholdermein the Company’s
common stock against the cumulative total returthefS&P Composite-500 Stock Index and the cunuddttal return of a
published group index for the Retail Grocery Stdnekistry (“Peer Group”), provided by Value Linagl, for the period of five
years. The graph depicts $100 invested at the dbsading on the last trading day precedindfittsé day of the fifth preceding year
in Weis Markets, Inc. common stock, S&P 500, arelRker Group. The cumulative total return assugiagestment of dividends.

Comparative Five-Year Total Returns
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
=@==\Neis Markets Inc Standard & Poors 500 Grocery
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Weis Markets, Inc. 100.00 100.83 138.08 129.01 122.81 190.05
S&P 500 100.00 116.00 153.57 174.60 177.05 198.22
Peer Group 100.00 115.77 156.63 208.58 218.96 233.72



Item 6. Selected Financial Data:

WEIS MARKETS, INC.

The following selected historical financial infortitan has been derived from the Company's auditets@aated Financial
Statements. This information should be read imection with the Company's Consolidated Financiaté3nents and the Notes
thereto, as well as "Management's Discussion aralyais of Financial Condition and Results of Opierat," included in Item 7.

Five Year Review of Operations

53 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
(dollars in thousands, except shares, Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
per share amounts and store information) Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 26, 2015 Dec. 27, 2014 Dec2a13 Dec. 29, 2012
Net sale $ 3,136,72 $ 2,876,74 $ 2,776,68 $ 2,692,58 $ 2,701,405
Costs and expenses 3,038,395 2,785,969 2,695,308 2,578,916 2,573,712
Income from operations 98,32¢ 90,77¢ 81,37 113,67: 127,693
Investment income and interest expense 2,457 1,552 2,287 4,684 3,882
Gain on bargain purchase 23,87¢ - - - -
Income before provision for income taxes 124,661 92,331 83,662 118,356 131,575
Provision for income taxes 37,49¢ 33,00: 29,28: 45,17( 48,675
Net incom 87,162 59,330 54,381 73,186 82,900
Retained earnings, beginning of year 1,007,89 980,84. 958,73¢ 917,83: 867,209

1,095,056 1,040,172 1,013,120 991,017 950,109

Cash dividends 32,27¢ 32,27¢ 32,27¢ 32,27¢ 32,278
Retained earnings, end of year $ 1,062,778 $ 1,007,894 $ 980,842 $ 958,739 $ 917,831
Weighted-average shares outstanding, dilut 26,898,44 26,898,44 26,898,44 26,898,44 26,898,443
Cash dividends per share $ 1.20 $ 1.20 $ 1.20 $ 1.20 $ 1.20
Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 3.24 $ 2.21 $ 2.02 $ 2.7:2 $ 3.08
Working capital $ 207,700 $ 232,722 $ 229,595 $ 215,802 $ 235,856
Total assets $ 1,431,30 $ 1,235,95 $ 1,191,11 $ 1,148,224 $ 1,090,440
Shareholders’ equity $ 926,722 $ 871,747 $ 844,763 $ 821,770 $ 781,942
Number of grocery stor 204 165 165 16& 163
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ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofiiancial Condition and Results of Operations:
Overview

The following Management'’s Discussion and Analydiginancial Condition and Results of Operation®@A) is intended to help
the reader understand Weis Markets, Inc., its djp@mmand its present business environment. Thé&RMI3 provided as a
supplement to and should be read in conjunctioh thié Consolidated Financial Statements and thenaganying notes thereto
contained in “Item 8. Financial Statements and $&mpntary Data” of this report. The following aysis should also be read in
conjunction with the Financial Statements includethe Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and the AhRagoort on Form 10-K filed
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissisnyell as the cautionary statement captioned “Faivi@oking Statements”
immediately following this analysis. This overviswmmarizes the MD&A, which includes the followisgctions:

« Company Overview - a general descriptiorhef Company’s business and strategic imperatives.

* Results of Operations - an analysis of then@any’s consolidated results of operations fortkinee years presented in the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

+ Liquidity and Capital Resources - an analgdisash flows, aggregate contractual obligatiamsl off-balance sheet
arrangements.

 Critical Accounting Policies and Estimatesdiscussion of accounting policies that requirgcal judgments and estimates.
Company Overview

General

Weis Markets, Inc. was founded in 1912 by Harry 8iginund Weis in Sunbury, Pennsylvania. TodayQbmpany ranks among
the top 50 United States and Canadian Food Redailedt Wholesalers in revenues generated. As cérbleer 31, 2016, the
Company operated 204 retail food stores in Penasjdvand six surrounding states: Delaware, Marylaledv Jersey, New York,
Virginia and West Virginia.

Company revenues are generated in its retail fomeésfrom the sale of a wide variety of consunredpcts including groceries,
dairy products, frozen foods, meats, seafood, fpestuce, floral, pharmacy services, deli prodystspared foods, bakery products,
beer and wine, fuel, and general merchandise itenth as health and beauty care and householdqisodlhe Company supports
its retail operations through a centrally locatédribution facility, its own transportation fleedhree manufacturing facilities and its
administrative offices. The Company's operatiaesraported as a single reportable segment.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofifflancial Condition and Results of Operations: (conhued)
Company Overview, (continued)

Strateqgic Imperatives

The following strategic imperatives continue tofbeused upon by the Company to attempt to ens@rsubcess of the Company in
the coming years:

» Establish a Sales Driven Culture — The Companyicoes to focus on sales and profits growth, impdoeperating
practices, increased productivity and positive dash. The Company believes disciplined growthlwitrease its market
share and operating profits, resulting in enharsteateholder value. The Company’s method of drigialgs includes
focused preparation and execution of sales programwssting in new stores and remodels, and sti@ggjuisitions.
Communicating clear executable standards and aligpérformance measures across the organizatibheifi to instill a
sales-driven operating environment.

» Continuously Upgrade Organizational Talent Poat support of the Company’s growth and sales bujldinategies, the
Company is committed to growing leaders at evergllehroughout the organization through enhanceddeship
development programs, succession planning, antlisstiang rewarding career paths. The Company bedi¢hat continuing
to build associate engagement and develop assaalatd directly impacts its ability to compete anebcute strategic plans.
The Company views this as a strategic imperativéuimre growth.

« Become More Relevant to Consumers — Understantimmgdnsumer is crucial to the Company’s stratelgin.pResearch
can be done by studying the wants and needs ofcom®&imers and casual consumers. Measuring cussatisfaction and
sharing insights across the organization will dmmunication between management and its consuriiéies Company
strives to build customer loyalty by purchasingduree from local growers and supporting organizatiwithin the
communities it serves. It will continue to invésnew stores, remodels and additions and stratagjaisitions, to help
retain and attract new consumers.

» Create Meaningful Differentiation — The Company tentified product pricing, locally focused st@gsortments, shopping
experience, overall convenience and customer seascritical components of future success. Tiagegty includes
developing improved customer service training attirgy customer service measurements and goalpaA®f this
strategy, management is committed to offeringusteamers a strong combination of quality, serviog @alue. It will
continue to offer competitive prices on name brand private brand products to exceed customergaapons.

»  Significantly Improve Decision Support and Measueet- The Company will continue to make investmémiss
information technology systems and distributionnmek. This will help improve associate productivigfore conditions and
the overall customer experience with user-friendiypport driven systems. These systems will adsilcue to play a key
role in the measurement of the Company’s stratégaisions and provide valuable insight into custob@havior, shopping
trends, and financial returns. Management willtcare to streamline its supply chain by focusingraproving inventory
turns, cost per case, in-stock position and overaNice levels, which will help to improve in-stazonditions and result in
increased sales and profits.

e Focus on Sustainability Strategies — The Companinestto be good stewards of the environment ankesthis an
important part of its overall mission. Its sustdiility strategy operates under four key pillarsen design, natural resource
conservation, food and agricultural impact andaaesponsibility. The goal of the sustainabifityategy is to reduce the
Company’s overall carbon footprint by reducing greeuse gas emissions and reducing the impact matgichange.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Item 7.

Results of Operations

Analysis of Consolidated Statements of Income

(dollars in thousands except per share amounts)

Management's Discussion and Analysis ofifflancial Condition and Results of Operations: (corihued)

Percentage Changes

For the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs. 2015 vs.
December 26, 2015 and December 27, (53 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) 2015 2014
Net sale $ 3,136,72C $ 2,876,74¢  $ 2,776,68:% 9.0 % 3.6 %
Cost of sales, including warehousing and distrdouti
expenses 2,264,565 2,090,016 2,023,721 8.4 3.3
Gross profit on sales 872,15¢ 786,732 752,962 10.9 45
Gross profit margin 27.8% 27.3% 27.1%
Operating, general and administrative expenses 773,83C 695,952 671,587 11.2 3.6
O, G & A, percent of net sales 24.7 % 24.2 % 24.2 %
Income from operations 98,325 90,779 81,375 8.3 11.6
Operating margin 31% 32% 29%
Investment income and interest expense 2,457 1,652 2,287 58.3 (32.1)
Investment income and interest expense, percamttof 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
sales
Gain on bargain purchase 23,879 - - 100.0 -
Gain on bargain purchase, percent of net sales %0.8 -% -%
Income before provision for income taxes 124,661 92,331 83,662 35.0 10.4
Isrziclzggwe before provision for income taxes, percémisd 4.0% 3.2 3.0 %
Provision for income taxes 37,499 33,001 29,281 13.6 12.7
Effective tax rate 30.1% 35.7% 35.0%
Net income $ 87,162 $ 590,330 $ 54,381 46.9 % 9.1 %
Net income, percent of net sales 2.8% 2.1% 2.0%
Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 324 % 221 % 2.02 46.6 % 9.4 %

Income is earned by selling merchandise at prieel$ethat produce revenues in excess of cost oftmerdise sold and operating and
administrative expenses. Although the Company experience short term fluctuations in its earnidgs to unforeseen short-term
operating cost increases, it historically has ked@a to increase revenues and maintain stablenggrfiom year to year.

Net Sales

The Company's revenues are earned and cash isatgzhas merchandise is sold to customers at tiné giosale. Discounts provided
to customers by the Company at the point of saeerognized as a reduction in sales as produetsodd or over the life of a
promotional program if redeemable in the futurésddunts provided by vendors, usually in the fofrpaper coupons, are not
recognized as a reduction in sales provided thpa@wsiare redeemable at any retailer that accepfsos.

Total store sales increased 9.0% in 2016, a 53-wesdkd, compared to 2015, a 52-week period. Tova@any’s total store sales,
adjusting for the additional week in 2016, increh669% compared to 2015. Total store sales, ekwudel sales and adjusting for
the additional week in 2016, increased 7.0% in 2@d@pared to 2015. Total store sales increasé€d B 1&015 compared to 2014.
Excluding fuel sales, total store sales increas8#4n 2015 compared to 2014.

When calculating the percentage change in compasdbte sales, the Company defines a new store ¢tornparable when it has
been in operation for five full quarters. Relochstores and stores with expanded square footegeduded in comparable store
sales since these units are located in existindgetsand are open during construction. Planneae slispositions are excluded from
the calculation. The Company only includes retald stores in the calculation.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofiffiancial Condition and Results of Operations: (conhued)
Results of Operations (continued)

Net Sales (continued)

Comparable store sales, adjusted for the additiwaak in 2016, increased 2.9% compared to 2013npacable store sales,
excluding fuel sales, also increased 2.9% in 2@kBpared to 2015. Comparable store sales increagéslin 2015 compared to
2014. Excluding fuel sales, comparable store sa@sased 4.4% in 2015 compared to 2014.

The Company attributes the increased net salesaphnto the acquisition of 44 locations. In adlit, the Company continued to
invest in lower pricing and disciplined sales bunglprograms. This includes targeted promotioctiviy in key regional markets
and its Everyday Lower Prices (EDLP) and Lowesté&fsuarantee promotional programs. The EDLP prodoavered prices on
more than 1,000 regularly purchased items. ThedsbWrice Guarantee program offers discounts onitims every week that the
Company guarantees to be the lowest compared &b dompetitors. The Company’s Weis Preferred Gtbpper program
continues to target customer members with perszedhibffers and digital coupons to help them saveawo As part of this loyalty
marketing program, the Company continues to oftsr&Gas Rewards” program in most markets. Thes'‘®awards” program
allows Weis Preferred Shoppers club card membesano gas discounts resulting from their in-starecpases. Customers can
redeem these gas discounts at any of the thirgetiiveis Gas-n-Go locations, as well as particigatiird-party gas retail locations
such as Sheetz convenience stores, which are tbitateost of the Company’s markets. Compared ttb2€he Company
experienced a 2.0% decrease in the average saleagtemer transaction in 2016. Compared to 204Company experienced a
0.2% decrease in the average sales per customeadt#on in 2015.

Comparable dairy sales, adjusted for the additinsgk in 2016, decreased 2.0% compared to 2016.d&brease in 2016 is
attributed to deflation in the cost of eggs andkmil

Comparable meat sales, adjusted for the additweak in 2016, decreased 0.2% compared to 2012016, the Company saw
deflation in costs causing a substantial redudtiaetail prices to remain competitive. The Companroduced certified angus beef,
a higher priced product, in order to offset thdatefn. Comparable meat sales increased 4.3%16 20mpared to 2014. In
addition to increased costs of commodities whichtteretail inflation in the first half of 2015,eHCompany continued to build the
meat department’s base business through aggresbreetising, the introduction of new programs axplamded variety and display
space for All Natural and organic products.

Comparable produce sales, adjusting for the additizveek in 2016, increased 4.8% compared to 20te Company continued
driving sales through aggressive advertising ancthandising campaigns, solid in-store executiomteand associate training
classes. Comparable produce sales increased 5.989d5 compared to 2014. The 2015 sales increasalriven by the factors
identified above as well as, product inflation,iacreased variety in key categories of producesdore remodeling projects.

Comparable pharmacy sales, adjusted for the additiveek in 2016, increased 8.4% compared to 2@dnparable pharmacy sales
increased 7.4% in 2015 compared to 2014. The p@arsales increase in both years was driven byp@aeased number of filled
prescriptions caused by an increase in individebdgble for healthcare benefits under the AfforigaBGare Act (ACA) and the
acceptance of more third-party insurance plans.

Comparable fuel sales, adjusted for the additiamak in 2016, decreased 7.7% in 2016 compared1b.2Comparable fuel sales
decreased 25.4% in 2015 compared to 2014. Fued dakreased as a result of the decline in rewlilprices from 2014 through
2016. According to the U.S. Department of Enethg, weekly average price of gasoline in the Cemitlantic States decreased
10.1%, or $0.26 per gallon, in 2016. The 52-weeakage price of gasoline in the Central Atlantiat&$, according to the U.S.
Department of Energy, decreased 27.1%, or $0.98adkm, in 2015 compared to 2014.

Management remains confident in its ability to gate sales growth in a highly competitive environtméut also understands some

competitors have greater financial resources anttlagse these resources to take measures whicti aduérsely affect the
Company's competitive position.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofiffiancial Condition and Results of Operations: (conhued)

Results of Operations (continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Cost of sales consists of direct product costsdhdiscounts and allowances), distribution ceatat transportation costs, as well as
manufacturing facility operations. Almost all dietincrease in cost of sales in 2016 as compar2@its is due to the increased sales
volume in 2016. Both direct product cost and dhstiion cost increase when sales volume increases.

According to the latest U.S. Bureau of Labor Statis report, the annual Seasonally Adjusted FopH@me Consumer Price Index
decreased 1.3% in 2016 but increased 1.1% in 20d2 &% in 2014. Even though the U.S. Bureau tbl&tatistics’ index rates
may be reflective of a trend, it will not neceslsalbie indicative of the Company’s actual resulsien with the fluctuation of retail
and wholesale prices, the Company has achievedss grofit rate of 27.8% in 2016, 27.3% in 2015 aid.% in 2014. The
increase in gross profit rate was driven by a shiftales mix from fuel to grocery sales which garthigher profit margin.

The Company experienced a LIFO credit of $2.2 prillfior 2016, compared to a charge of $1.4 millienZ015 and a charge of
$911,000 for 2014. The Company expects wholegade mflation to increase slightly in 2017.

The Company's profitability is impacted by the cafsbil. Fluctuating fuel prices affect the delied cost of product and the cost of
other petroleum-based supplies. As a percentagale$, the cost of diesel fuel used by the Compadgliver goods from its
distribution center to its stores decreased by%.082016 compared to 2015 and decreased by 0.02%15 compared to 2014.
Although the Company experienced a decrease ie tests, the decline in expense was minimized @bgyher fuel usage resulting
from more store deliveries to meet the higher sdéasand. According to the U.S. Department of Epettte weekly average diesel
fuel price for the Central Atlantic States decrela$@.50 per gallon to $2.44 per gallon as of Decandi, 2016, compared to $2.94
per gallon as of December 21, 2015. Based upobltBeEnergy Information Administration’s currembjections, the Company is
expecting diesel fuel prices to increase slighdlgapproximately $2.75 during 2017.

Although the Company experienced product costtiofteand deflation in various commodities in 202815 and 2014, management

cannot accurately measure the full impact of ifdlabr deflation on retail pricing due to changeshe types of merchandise sold
between periods, shifts in customer buying pattantsthe fluctuation of competitive factors.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofifiancial Condition and Results of Operations: (corihued)
Results of Operations (continued)

Operating, General and Administrative Expenses

Business operating costs, including expenses geaeftamm administration and purchasing functioms,racorded in "Operating,
general and administrative expenses." Businessabpe costs include items such as wages, benefilisies, repairs and
maintenance, advertising costs and credits, nestirance, depreciation, leasehold amortizationcasts for outside provided
services. The majority of the expenses were drioyeimcreased sales.

The Company may not be able to recover rising espethrough increased prices charged to its cussondemajority of our
associates are paid hourly rates related to fedadhktate minimum wage laws. The Company incretimelase hourly rate for
associates to $9 per hour as of August 2, 201érder to attract and retain talented associatdsavjoal of delivering best-in-class
customer service. The Company has decided nattease prices to offset this hourly wage rateciase.

Employee-related costs such as wages, employetaad, health care benefits and retirement ptzoraprise approximately 60% of
the total “Operating, general and administrativpesses.” As a percent of sales, direct store ladooeased 0.2% in 2016 compared
to 2015 but decreased 0.1% in 2015 compared to.20hé increase in the base hourly rate for astexcta $9 per hour and related
wage compression had an estimated cost of $6.mit 2016. Increases in employee related expgewsee offset by savings
realized from a store labor efficiency project.

The Company’s self-insured health care benefit Bgpg increased by 15.4% in 2016 compared to 20d fhareased by 0.4% in
2015 compared to 2014. The increase from 201916 2 mainly attributed to an increase in particifs from the acquired locations
as well as overall group health costs. The Compamains concerned about the impact that The R&iertection and Affordable
Care Act (ACA) will have on its future operatingpenses.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $76 8omilor 2.4% of net sales, for 2016 compared t0.$Million, or 2.4% of net
sales, for 2015 and $66.9 million, or 2.4% of radés, for 2014. The increase in depreciation andrization expense in 2016
compared to 2015 and in 2015 compared to 2014 lreasesult of additional capital expenditures asGbenpany implements its
capital expansion program, including the acquisitdd 44 locations. See the Liquidity and CapitakBurces section for further
information regarding the Company’s capital expangrogram.

The Company recognized pre-tax gains of $751,00026 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively, frtm sale of two properties
in each year. In 2016, the Company determinedtki@ahsset value of one property was impaired. Aesalt, the Company
recognized a pre-tax impairment loss of $894,088e Note 1(l) to the Consolidated Financial Statemiacluded in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for more information on the Qamy's impairment charges.

Retail store profitability is sensitive to volatyliin utility costs due to the amount of electycitnd gas required to operate the
Company's stores and facilities. The Companyspaading to this volatility in operating costs bypoying conservation
technologies, procurement strategies and assamieigy awareness programs to manage and reduasngatisn. The Company
continues to be a member of the EPA GreenChill anogfor advancing environmentally beneficial redrignt management systems
and has ten stores registered under this progtar2016, the Company exceeded its corporate camddurction goal of 20% by 2020.
The Company realized a 22% reduction in the overalbon footprint versus a base year of 2008. #aitil corporate sustainability
goals are: reducing energy usage by 2% each yeadacing 50% of the truck fleet with fuel efficiemactors within three years and
increasing recycling 5% each year. In 2016, thengany recycled 43,000 tons of materials, represgricorporate wide recycling
rate of 54%.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofiffiancial Condition and Results of Operations: (conhued)

Results of Operations (continued)

Operating, General and Administrative Expense (icomed)

A breakdown of the material increases (decreases) @ercent of sales in "Operating, general and adstiative expenses" is as follows:

2016 vs. 201
Increase Increase (Decrease)
(dollars in thousands) (Decrease) as a % of sales
Employee related expense $ 41,174 0.1%
Acquisition-related expense $ 14,166 0.5%

Employee related expenses increased in 2016 faets®ns noted above and due to a 25% increassadniates related the
acquisition of 5 former Mars stores, 38 former Fhazh stores and a former Nell’'s Family Market gtofThis increase in
associates contributed to increased wages, beaefitsetirement expenses.

Acquisition-related expenses, excluding the expensentioned above, primarily consisted of storaaieg expenses,
travel expenses and contracted labor for stordsese

A breakdown of the material increases (decreasgs) percent of sales in "Operating, general and iaistrative expensess as follows:

2015 vs. 201
Increase Increase (Decrease)

(dollars in thousands) (Decrease) as a % of sales
Employee related expenses $ 19,421 0.2%
Store advertising expense $ (1,277) (0.1)%
Depreciation and amortization $ 4,473 0.1%
Utility expense $ (1,222) (0.1)%
Rent expense $ (1,220 (0.1%

Employee-related expenses increased in 2015 faetdsons noted above, primarily related to increasthe basic hourly
rate, management incentives and increases ingal@se. Hourly employees, particularly part timepoyees, are required
to work increased hours when there is growth iasablume. Increases in employee related expevesesoffset by
savings realized from a store labor efficiency pcojn 2015.

Store advertising expense decreased in 2015 dweltiwed spending on direct mail and weekly ads.

Depreciation and amortization increased in 201& asult of the Company’s store capital expendituogram and
technology investments.

Utility expense decreased in 2015 for the reasotednabove related to energy conservation effordsprocurement
strategies, along with reduced electricity cost$ @sage and a reduction in the use of natural gas.

Rent expense decreased in 2015 primarily due wstdgnts to accrued closed store liability estisiated purchasing a
previously leased location.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofifflancial Condition and Results of Operations: (conhued)

Results of Operations (continued)

Investment Income

The Company’s investment portfolio consists of netakle securities, which currently includes muratiponds and equity
securities, as well as the Company’s SERP invedtnadrich is comprised of mutual funds that are rtaimed within the Company’s
non-qualified supplemental executive retirementad the non-qualified pharmacist deferred cong@nsplan. The Company
classifies all of its municipal bonds and equitgigities as available-for-sale. The SERP investmare classified as trading
securities.

Analysis of Investment Income 2016 2015 2014 Dollar Changes Dollar Changes
(dollars in thousands) (53 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) 2016 vs. 2015 2015 vs. 2014
Bond income $ 1,655 $ 1,420 $ 1,187 $ 235 $ 233
Equity income 419 412 706 7 (294)
SERP investment 626 (280 394 906 (674)
Investment income $ 2,700% 1552 $ 2,287 % 1,148 $ (735)

Equity income decreased in 2015 as a result o€tmapany receiving a stock dividend in 2014 whicls wat repeated in
2015.

SERP investment was impacted by market adjustnietsth 2016 and 2015 and experienced a gain i6.201

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective income tax rate was 30.1%, 35.7%3508% in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. TFec#fe income tax rate
decreased in 2016 due to the impact of the bamaichase gain on the 38 locations being includeteroverall gain calculation and
not in income tax expense. The effective tax ext@duding the bargain purchase gain was 37.2%. iffdrease in the effective tax
rate excluding the bargain purchase gain as cordgarthe 2015’s effective tax rate was driven byramease in state tax expense.
The effective income tax rate differs from the fedetatutory rate of 35% primarily due to the effef the bargain purchase gain,
state income taxes and net permanent differendeseffective income tax rate rose in 2015 due tmarease in state tax expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities was $85illion in 2016, compared to $136.7 million inZDand $123.1 million in 2014.
Working capital decreased 10.8% in 2016, incredsé% in 2015 and increased 6.4% in 2014, in eash campared to the prior
year. The working capital decrease in 2016 wasexby the increased investment in the Companygata&xpansion program,
specifically the acquisitions summarized in Notef $he Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statémiecluded in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Working capital increases0i2 and 2014 are primarily attributed to a reduogdstment in the Company’s
capital expansion program compared to previoussyear

Net cash used in investing activities was $186/iamniin 2016 compared to $109.8 million in 2015$85.8 million in 2014. These
funds were used primarily to purchase propertyemqupment in the three fiscal years presentedpd?ty and equipment purchases
totaled $142.1 million in 2016, compared to $90iRiom in 2015 and $79.2 million in 2014. In 201the Company paid $24.6
million for the purchase of 5 former Mars Super Marocations in the Baltimore County, MD regio294 million for the purchase
of 38 former Food Lion Supermarket locations thifomg Virginia, Maryland and Delaware and $9.6 raiilifor the purchase of a
former Nell's Family Market location in East BerliRA. The Company paid $7.9 million for the prdgemd equipment related to
the purchase of a store in Hanover, Pennsylvartiaeinhird quarter of 2015. As a percentage afssalapital expenditures were
7.0%, 3.1% and 2.9% in 2016, 2015 and 2014, reisdct

The Company’s capital expansion program includeesicquisitions, the construction of new supeestathe expansion and
remodeling of existing units, the acquisition désifor future expansion, new technology purchasesthe continued upgrade of the
Company’s distribution facilities and transportatfteet. Management currently plans to invest agipnately $90 million in its
capital expansion program in 2017.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofiffiancial Condition and Results of Operations: (conhued)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (continued)

Net cash generated from financing activities wa &3nillion in 2016. In 2016, the Company entergd a revolving credit
agreement and borrowed a total of $64.5 milliothefavailable $100.0 million from Wells Fargo Bahational Association,
increasing the cash flow from financing activit@smpared to 2015. In addition, the company is$83 million of cash dividend
payments in 2016. The net cash flows used in 20562014 consisted solely of the $32.3 million adisidend payments.

At December 31, 2016, the Company had $16.7 miimmmitted to outstanding letters of credit. Tédrs of credit are maintained
primarily to support performance, payment, depasgurety obligations of the Company. The Compdogs not anticipate drawing
on any of them and has committed to not draw ajtiadal amounts from the line of credit.

Total cash dividend payments on common stock, perahare basis, amounted to $1.20 in 2016, 20d2@14. No treasury stock
was purchased in 2016, 2015 or 2014. The BoaRirettors’ 2004 resolution authorizing the repuisshaf up to one million shares
of the Company’s common stock has a remaining lbalah 752,468 shares.

The Company has no other commitment of capitaliess as of December 31, 2016, other than the tmamenitments on its store
facilities and transportation equipment under ofiegdeases that expire at various dates throu@320 he Company anticipates
funding its working capital requirements and it® $8illion 2017 capital expansion program througbhcand future internally
generated cash flows from operations, as well @sdholving credit facility agreement the Companteeed into on September 1,
2016 with Wells Fargo Bank, National AssociatioheTremaining balance as of December 31, 2016 i8$t#lion, which is the net
amount of the original $100.0 million availabledhgh the revolving credit facility agreement, l&ss $64.5 million borrowed and
the $16.7 million dollars of outstanding letterscoédit. On March 13, 2017, the line of credit éalie through the revolving credit
facility was increased to $120.0 million.

The Company’s marketable securities portfolio autlyeconsists of municipal bonds and equity se@sit Other short-term
investments are classified as cash equivalente@@onsolidated Balance Sheets.

Under its current policies, the Company investsigh-grade marketable debt securities and doegs®interest rate derivative
instruments to manage exposure to interest rateufitions. Currently, the Company’s investmersdtetyy of obtaining marketable
debt securities with maturity dates between onetangears helps to minimize market risk and tontaén a balance between risk
and return. The equity securities owned by the @amg consist primarily of stock held in large calited companies trading on
public security exchange markets. The Companyisagament continually monitors the risk associatih it marketable
securities. A quantitative tabular presentationisk exposure is located in “Item 7a. Quantitativel Qualitative Disclosures about
Market Risk” of this report.

By their nature, these financial instruments inhdyeexpose the holders to market risk. The extéithe Company’s interest rate
and other market risk is not quantifiable or préalite with precision due to the variability of fuduinterest rates and other changes in
market conditions. However, the Company beliehas its exposure in this area is not material.

The Company experienced an unrealized holding wegiimf deferred taxes of $348,000 in 2016, an diaexhholding loss net of
deferred taxes of $52,000 in 2015 and an unrealindding gain net of deferred taxes of $927,0020t44 (see Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income). As of Dece®be2016, the Company had $8.7 million in grassealized holding gains
and $459,000 in gross unrealized holding lossede@lto marketable securities. See Note 2 Invegsnef Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included inAmsual Report on Form 10-K for more informationtbe Company’s marketable
securities.

Contractual Obligations
The following table represents scheduled maturigfetie Company’s long-term contractual obligatiassof December 31, 2016.

Payments due by period

Less than More than
(dollars in thousands) Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating leases $ 252,145 $ 43,512 $ 78,313 $ 50,260 $ 80,060
Long-term Debt 64,476 - 64,476 - -
Total $ 316,621 $ 43,512 $ 142,789 $ 50,260 $ 80,060
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofiffiancial Condition and Results of Operations: (conhued)

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company is not a party to any off-balance sheangements that have, or are reasonably likefate, a current or future effect
on the Company’s financial condition, results oérggions or cash flows, except for the Compangsdecommitments to be
recognized on the balance sheet related to opgrigi@ses for its store facilities and transportagquipment, which will be required
for annual periods beginning after December 1582tdr the Financial Accounting Standards Board SBA) Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU") 2016-02L eases (Topic 842)See Note 1(w) Summary of Significant Accountifraicies, to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual ReporForm 10-K for more information on ASU 2016-02.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company has chosen accounting policies thelitves are appropriate to accurately and fagport its operating results and
financial position, and the Company applies thazmanting policies in a consistent manner. Thai8aant Accounting Policies are
summarized in Note 1 to the Consolidated Finarigiatements.

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi® United States of America
requires that the Company makes estimates and ptisasithat affect the reported amounts of as$atslities, revenues and
expenses. These estimates and assumptions ackdrabistorical and other factors believed to lesomable under the
circumstances. The Company evaluates these esiraatl assumptions on an ongoing basis and maiy cefizide consultants,
lawyers and actuaries to assist in its evaluatibme Company believes the following accountingge$ are the most critical because
they involve the most significant judgments andnestes used in preparation of its Consolidated iz Statements.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or regrigsing both the last-in, first-out (LIFO) forrter store and pharmacy inventories
and average cost methods for fresh inventoriesdetthe LIFO method, inventory is stated at cosiictvis determined by applying
a cost-to-retail to each similar merchandise catgg@nding retail value. The Company’s fresh imegies are valued using average
cost. The Company evaluates inventory shortagesighout the year based on actual physical courits facilities. Allowances for
inventory shortages are recorded based on thesesithese counts and to provide for estimatedtabes from the last physical
count to the financial statement date.

Vendor Allowances

Vendor allowances related to the Company's buymtjraerchandising activities are recorded as a temuof cost of sales as they
are earned, in accordance with the underlying ageeé Off-invoice and bill-back allowances aredisereduce direct product costs
upon the receipt of goods. Promotional rebatescagdits are accounted for as a reduction in tis¢ @binventory and recognized
when the related inventory is sold. Volume incemiiliscounts are realized as a reduction of cosalefs at the time it is deemed
probable and reasonably estimable that the inoetdirget will be reached. Long-term contract iniees, which require an exclusive
vendor relationship, are allocated over the lifé¢hef contract. Promotional allowance funds forcHievendor-sponsored programs
are recognized as a reduction of cost of saleBeaprbgram occurs and the funds are earned pagteement. Cash discounts for
prompt payment of invoices are realized in costadés as invoices are paid. Warehouse and badlalmuances provided by
suppliers for distributing their product througle tBompany’s distribution system are recorded it absales as the required
performance is completed. Warehouse rack andrajaitiowances are recorded in cost of sales wieenitems are initially set up in
the Company's distribution system, which is whenrillated expenses are incurred and performana thnelagreement is complete.
Swell allowances for damaged goods are realized st of sales as provided by the supplier, helfpngffset product shrink losses
also recorded in cost of sales.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofiffiancial Condition and Results of Operations: (conhued)
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates (contined)

Store Closing Costs

The Company provides for closed store liabilitiekating to the estimated post-closing lease liaddiand related other exit costs
associated with the store closing commitments.ofABecember 31, 2016, the remaining closed stoseaHaase term of
approximately two years, and the liabilities asated with the closed store lease are paid ovetetine of the lease. Closed store
lease liabilities totaled $105,000 and $212,006fa3ecember 31, 2016 and December 26, 2015, ragplct The Company
estimates the lease liabilities, net of estimatéddesase income, using the undiscounted rent payodimiosed stores. Other exit
costs include estimated real estate taxes, comma@nnaaintenance, insurance and utility costs timcx@red after the store closes
over the remaining lease term. Store closingganerally completed within one year after the deniso close. Adjustments to
closed store liabilities and other exit costs prilyaelate to changes in sublease income and betitecosts differing from original
estimates. Adjustments are made for changesimagsts in the period in which the changes beconesvkn Any excess store
closing liability remaining upon settlement of thigligation is reversed to income in the period thath settlement is determined.
Store closing liabilities are reviewed quarterlyettsure that any accrued amount that is not acgrifi estimate of future costs, or that
is no longer needed for its originally intendedpmse, is adjusted to income in the proper periagentory write-downs, if any, in
connection with store closings, are classifieddst®of sales. Costs to transfer inventory andpgait from closed stores are
expensed as incurred.

Self-Insurance

The Company is self-insured for a majority of itsrikers’ compensation, general liability, vehicleident and associate medical
benefit claims. The self-insurance liability foost of the medical benefit claims is determinecedasn historical data and an
estimate of claims incurred but not reported. ®tier self-insurance liabilities including workecgmpensation are determined
actuarially, based on claims filed and an estimétaims incurred but not yet reported. The Comypaas liable for associate health
claims up to an annual maximum of $2,000,000 penbe prior to March 1, 2014 and an unlimited amaqertmember as of March
1, 2014. As of March 1, 2014, the Company purath@sep loss insurance which carries a $500,000fgpdeductible with a
$250,000 aggregating deductible. The Companyisdifor workers' compensation claims up to $2000 per claim. Property and
casualty insurance coverage is maintained withideisarriers at deductible or retention levels nagdgrom $100,000 to $1,000,000.
Significant assumptions used in the developmetih@fictuarial estimates include reliance on the [@my's historical claims data
including average monthly claims and average lag tbetween incurrence and reporting of the claim.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis ofifiancial Condition and Results of Operations: (corihued)

Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this Annuakeport may contain forward-looking statements, Whice included pursuant to the
“safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securitiftggation Reform Act of 1995. Any forward-lookingtatements contained herein
are subject to certain risks and uncertaintiesdbatd cause actual results to differ materialonirthose projected. For example,
risks and uncertainties can arise with changegeneral economic conditions, including their impactcapital expenditures;
business conditions in the retail industry; theutatpry environment; rapidly changing technologg @oempetitive factors, including
increased competition with regional and nationtdikers; and price pressures. Readers are cadtiooieto place undue reliance on
forward-looking statements, which reflect manageteseamnalysis only as of the date hereof. The Compadertakes no obligation
to publicly revise or update these forward-lookstgtements to reflect events or circumstancesitise after the date hereof.
Readers should carefully review the risk factorscdbed in other documents the Company files péradly with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

ltem 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk:

(dollars in thousands) Expected Maturity Dates Fair Value
December 31, 20: 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Thereafter Total D&d, 2016
Rate sensitive assets:
Fixed interest rate securitie$ 11,320 $11,310 $ 4,060 $ 3,705 $ 6,040 $ 16,670 $ 53,105 $ 57,811
Average interest rate 2.2t% 2.1% 1.7(% 2.2"% 2.12% 2.45% 2.2%

Other Relevant Market Risks

The Company’s equity securities at December 316221 a cost basis of $1,198,000 and a fair val$9,860,000. The dividend
yield realized on these equity investments was%.482016. Market risk, as it relates to equitesed by the Company, is
discussed within the “Liquidity and Capital Resagtsection of “Management’s Discussion and AnalggiFinancial Condition
and Results of Operations” contained within thigomt. Interest rate fluctuations will not have atarial impact on the long term
debt obligation.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Da:

WEIS MARKETS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2016 and December 26, . 2016 2015
Assets
Current:

Cash and cash equivalents 14,653 $ 17,596

Marketable securities 67,171 91,629

SERP investment 11,154 9,079

Accounts receivable, net 96,170 88,083

Inventories 276,78< 229,399

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 16,310 17,198

Income taxes recoverable 1,625 1,666

Total current assets 483,866 454,650
Property and equipment, net 878,19¢ 738,985
Goodwill 52,330 35,162
Intangible and other assets, net 16,913 7,162

Total assets 1,431,304 $ 1,235,959
Liabilities
Current:

Accounts payable 199,159 $ 160,441

Accrued expenses 50,947 37,819

Accrued self-insurance 19,330 16,770

Deferred revenue, net 6,730 6,898

Total current liabilities 276,166 221,928
Postretirement benefit obligations 15,277 14,368
Accrued self-insurance 21,353 22,761
Deferred income taxes 119,44t 97,020
Long-term debt 64,476 -
Other 7,865 8,135

Total liabilities 504,582 364,212
Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock, no par value, 100,800,000 sharesrrgid, 33,047,807 shares issued,

26,898,443 shares outstanding 9,949 9,949
Retained earnings 1,062,778 1,007,894
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 4,852 4,761

1,077,579 1,022,604

Treasury stock at cost, 6,149,364 shares (150,857 (150,857)
Total shareholders’ equity 926,722 871,747
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,431,30¢ $ 1,235,959

See accompanying notes to Consolidated FinanciéBients.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(dollars in thousands, except shares and per shareunts)

For the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2 2016 2015 2014
December 26, 2015 and December 27, . (53 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks)

Net sale $ 3,136,72( $ 2,876,74¢ $ 2,776,683
Cost of sales, including warehousing and distridnugxpenses 2,264,565 2,090,016 2,023,721
Gross profit on sales 872,15k 786,732 752,962
Operating, general and administrative expenses 773,830 695,953 671,587
Income from operations 98,325 90,779 81,375
Investment income and interest expense 2,457 1,552 2,287

Gain on bargain purchase 23,879 - s
Income before provision for income taxes 124,661 92,331 83,662
Provision for income taxes 37,499 33,001 29,281
Net income $ 87,162 $ 59,330 $ 54,381
Weighted-average shares outstanding, basic anedilu 26,898,443 26,898,443 26,898,443
Cash dividends per share $ 1.20 $ 1.20 $ 1.20
Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 3.24 $ 221 $ 2.02

See accompanying notes to Consolidated FinanciéBients.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(dollars in thousands)

For the Fiscal Years Ended December 2016, 2016 2015 2014
December 26, 2015 and December 27, : (53 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks)
Net incom: $ 87,162 $ 59,330 54,381
Other comprehensive income (loss) by componenpintaix:
Available-for-sale marketable securities
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising duringqae
(Net of deferred taxes of $239, $37 and $644, cinpmty) 348 (52 927
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedéhincome
(Net of deferred taxes of $180, $11 and $26, raspy) (257 (16; (37)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 91 (68) 890
Comprehensive income, net of tax $ 87,253 $ 59,262 55,271

See accompanying notes to Consolidated FinancidéBients.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Accumulated

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(dollars in thousands, except shares) Other Total
For the Fiscal Years EndeDecember 31, 2016, Common Stock Retained Comprehensive Treasury Stock Shareholders’
December 26, 2015 and December 27, . Shares Amount Earnings Income (Loss) Shares Amount Equity
Balance at December 28, 2013 33,047,807 $ 9949 $ 958,73¢ $ 3,939 6,149,36¢ $ (150,857 $ 821,770
Net income — — 54,381 — — — 54,381
Other comprehensive income, net of
reclassification adjustments and tax — — — 890 — — 890
Dividends paid — — (32,278 — — — (32,278)
Balance at December 27, 2014 33,047,807 9,949 980,842 4,829 6,149,364 (150,857) 844,763
Net income — — 59,330 — — — 59,330
Other comprehensive loss, net of
reclassification adjustments and tax — — — (68) — — (68)
Dividends paid — — (32,278) — — — (32,278)
Balance at December 26, 2015 33,047,801 9,949 1,007,89< 4,761 6,149,36¢ (150,857 871,747
Net income — — 87,162 — — — 87,162
Other comprehensive income, net of
reclassification adjustments and tax — — — 91 — — 91
Dividends paid — — (32,278 — — — (32,278)
Balance at December 31, 2016 33,047,807 $ 9,949 $ 1,062,778 $ 4,852 6,149,364 $ (150,857)$ 926,722

See accompanying notes to Consolidated FinancidéBients.
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(dollars in thousands)

WEIS MARKETS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2 2016 2015 2014
December 26, 2015 and December 27, . (53 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net incom $ 87,162 59,330 $ 54,381
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 66,496 61,834 59,004
Amortization 10,366 8,280 7,865
Loss (gain) on disposition of fixed assets 1,353 (54) (2,630)
Impairment of fixed assets 894 - -
Gain on sale of marketable securities (437, (27) (63)
Gain on sale of intangible assets (200; = -
Gain on acquisition of business (23,879 - -
Deferred income taxes 5,703 (212 3,235
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventories (38,102 10,242 811
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses (5,096 (17,127) (13,588)
Income taxes recoverable 41 (1,054 (612)
Accounts payable and other liabilities 46,131 14,403 17,230
Income taxes payable - - (1,628)
Other 1,161 1,118 (895)
Net cash provided by operating activities 151,59: 136,73< 123,110
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (142,144 (90,210 (79,177)
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 442 1,929 3,614
Purchase of marketable securities (40,858 (31,329 (20,118)
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities 1,335 3,201 4,050
Proceeds from the sale of marketable securities 62,566 9,171 7,668
Acquisition of business (63,632 - -
Purchase of intangible assets (2,568 (2,649 (2,479)
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 200 - -
Change in SERP investment (2,075 42 (369)
Net cash used in investing activities (186,734 (109,845) (85,811)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 64,476 - -
Dividends paid (32,278 (32,278 (32,278)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 32,198 (32,278) (32,278)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (2,943 (5,390 5,021
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 17,596 22,986 17,965
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 14,653 17,596 % 22,986

See accompanying notes to Consolidated FinancidéBients.

26



WEIS MARKETS, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following is a summary of the significant acnting policies utilized in preparing the Compan@snsolidated Financial
Statements:

(a) Description of Business

Weis Markets, Inc. is a Pennsylvania business catjpm formed in 1924. The Company is engageccipally in the retail sale of
food in Pennsylvania and surrounding states. Tdmany’s operations are reported as a single ra@plersegment. There was no
material change in the nature of the Company'sniessiduring fiscal 2016.

(b) Definition of Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last Satuid®ecember. Fiscal 2016 was comprised of 53 wieehkding on December 31,
2016. Fiscal 2015 was comprised of 52 weeks, gnaimDecember 26, 2015. Fiscal 2014 was compaéé@ weeks, ending on
December 27, 2014. References to years in thisidlReport relate to fiscal years.

(c) Principles of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include tkeunts of the Company and its subsidiaries. ighificant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminatednisotidation.

(d) Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made a number ofagst and assumptions relating to the reportirasséts and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiegrepare these Consolidated Financial Statenetanformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafe&merica. Actual results could differ from thosstimates.

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company maintains its cash balances in the &dreore checking accounts and money market acsourtie Company
maintains cash deposits with banks that at timesexk applicable insurance limits. The Companyaeslits exposure to credit risk
by maintaining such deposits with high quality fical institutions that management believes arditwerthy.

The Company considers investments with an origimaturity of three months or less to be cash egeintal Investment amounts
classified as cash equivalents as of December@®1 and December 26, 2015 totaled $714,000 andrfi@n, respectively.

(f) Marketable Securities
Marketable securities consist of municipal bonds equity securities. The Company invests primarilizigh-grade marketable debt
securities. The Company classifies all of its retakle securities as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale securities are recorded atVaiue as determined by quoted market price basettonal markets. Unrealized
holding gains and losses, net of the related tiecefare excluded from earnings and are repoediseparate component of
shareholders’ equity until realized. A declinghe fair value below cost that is deemed other thawporary results in a charge to
earnings and the establishment of a new cost barsise security. Dividend and interest incomeeisognized when earned.
Realized gains and losses are included in ear@indsare derived using the specific identificatiogtimod for determining the cost of
securities.

(g) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated net of an allow#micencollectible accounts of $1,455,000 and $1,980 as of December 31, 2016
and December 26, 2015, respectively. The resealanbe relates to amounts due from pharmacy tlairty providers, retail
customer returned checks, manufacturing custormergjors and tenants. The Company maintains awatice for the amount of
receivables deemed to be uncollectible and cakesilgiis amount based upon historical collectioividgtadjusted for current
conditions. Customer electronic payments accepiéoe point of sale are classified as accountsivable until collected.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policiegcontinued)

(h) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or regriusing both the last-in, first-out (LIFO) anceeage cost methods. The
Company’s center store and pharmacy inventoriesalteed using LIFO. Under this method, inventargtated at cost, which is
determined by applying a cost-to-retail to eachilainmerchandise category’s ending retail valuéie Tompany’s fresh inventories
are valued using average cost. The Company eealiratentory shortages throughout the year basedtial physical counts in its
facilities. Allowances for inventory shortages egeorded based on the results of these counttogmvide for estimated shortages
from the last physical count to the financial ste¢@t date.

(i) Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Rigtian is provided on the cost of buildings angiovements and equipment
using the straight-line method.

Leasehold improvements are amortized using th@htrline method over the terms of the leases emnieful lives of the assets,
whichever is shorter.

Maintenance and repairs are expensed and renemcilsedterments are capitalized. When assets tredrer otherwise disposed of,
the assets and accumulated depreciation are renfimradhe respective accounts and any profit os s the disposition is credited
or charged to “Operating, general and administeag¢ixpenses.”

() Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairmentan annual basis and between annual tests wHiafors of impairment are
identified. Intangible assets with an indefiniteful life are not amortized until their usefuklis determined to be no longer
indefinite and are tested for impairment annuaflynore frequently if events or changes in circumsés indicate that the asset might
be impaired.

The Company’s intangible assets and related acatetubmortization at December 31, 2016 and Dece@$)e2015 consisted of the
following:

December 31, 2016 December 26, 2015
Accumulated Accumulate:
(dollars in thousands) Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
Liquor Licenses $ 8,423 $ - $ 8,423 $ 5,965 $ - $ 5,965
Lease Acquisitions 10,960 2,984 7,976 3,654 2,604 1,050
Customer Lists 295 21 274 162 15 147
Total $ 19,678 $ 3,005 $ 16,673 $ 9,781 $ 2,619 $ 7,162

Intangible assets with a definite useful life aemerally amortized on a straight-line basis oveiggs up to 30 years. Estimated
amortization expense for the next five fiscal yaampproximately $928,000 in 2017, $928,000 in&b28,000 in 2019, $925,000
in 2020 and $869,000 in 2021. As of December 8162the Company'’s intangible assets with indedifiites consisted of goodwill
and Pennsylvania liquor licenses.
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policiegcontinued)

(k) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically evaluates the period girdeiation or amortization for long-lived assetsl&termine whether current
circumstances warrant revised estimates of usie8.]l The Company completes an impairment testahn The Company also
reviews its property and equipment for impairmehenever events or changes in circumstances indivatearrying value of an
asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability @smed by a comparison of the carrying amounteatt undiscounted cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset. An impairioes would be recorded for the excess of neklvatue over the fair value of
the asset impaired. The fair value is estimatesth@n current market values or expected discodntace cash flows.

With respect to owned property and equipment aasetiwith closed stores, the value of the propemty equipment would be
adjusted to reflect recoverable values if curreatn®@mic conditions and estimated fair values ofpttaperty was less than the net
book value.

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codificatim. 360,Property, Plant and Equipmerthe Company recorded a pre-tax
charge of$894,000 in the fourth quarter of 2016 for the impent of long-lived assets, including equipmerd sasehold
improvements. The charge was a result of manageded@tmining that the net book value of a propesdsg less than the recoverable
value. This charge was included as a componet®pérating, general and administrative expenses."

The results of impairment tests are subject to mament’s estimates and assumptions of projectdudftass and operating results.
The Company believes that, based on current conditimaterially different reported results arelikatly to result from long-lived
asset impairments. However, a change in assunsptiomarket conditions could result in a changesitimated future cash flows
and the likelihood of materially different reportesbults.

() Store Closing Costs

The Company provides for closed store liabilitielating to the estimated post-closing lease liabdiand related other exit costs
associated with the store closing commitments.ofABecember 31, 2016, the remaining closed stoseaHaase term of
approximately two years, and the liabilities asated with the closed store lease are paid ovetetine of the lease. Closed store
lease liabilities totaled $105,000 and $212,000fd3ecember 31, 2016 and December 26, 2015, régphct The Company
estimates the lease liabilities, net of estimatddlesise income, using the undiscounted rent paynoéiosed stores. Other exit
costs include estimated real estate taxes, comma@nnaaintenance, insurance and utility costs timc@red after the store closes
over the remaining lease term. Store closingganerally completed within one year after the denito close. Adjustments to
closed store liabilities and other exit costs prilyaelate to changes in sublease income and betitacosts differing from original
estimates. Adjustments are made for changesimasts in the period in which the changes beconosvkn Any excess store
closing liability remaining upon settlement of thigligation is reversed to income in the period thath settlement is determined.
Store closing liabilities are reviewed quarterlyettsure that any accrued amount that is not acgifi estimate of future costs, or that
is no longer needed for its originally intendedpmse, is adjusted to income in the proper perioeentory write-downs, if any, in
connection with store closings are classified istad sales. Costs to transfer inventory and eqaigt from closed stores are
expensed as incurred.

The following table summarizes accrual activity fioture lease obligations of stores that were daseghe normal course of
business:
Closed Store

(dollars in thousands) Obligations

Balance at December 27, 2014 $ 955
Additions 0
Payments (578)
Adjustments (165)

Balance at December 26, 2015 212
Additions 0
Payments (33)
Adjustments (74)

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 105
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WEIS MARKETS, INC.

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policiegcontinued)

(m) Self-Insurance

The Company is self-insured for a majority of itsrkers’ compensation, general liability, vehicleident and associate medical
benefit claims. The self-insurance liability fopst of the medical benefit claims is determinededasn historical data and an
estimate of claims incurred but not reported. ®tier self-insurance liabilities including workecgmpensation are determined
actuarially, based on claims filed and an estiméataims incurred but not yet reported. The Conmypaas liable for associate health
claims up to an annual maximum of $2,000,000 penb® prior to March 1, 2014 and an unlimited amqertmember as of and
after March 1, 2014. As of March 1, 2014, the Camppurchased stop loss insurance which carri&®@,800 specific deductible
with a $250,000 aggregating deductible. The Comjpaliable for workers' compensation claims u$2000,000 per claim.
Property and casualty insurance coverage is magdaiith outside carriers at deductible or retent@vels ranging from $100,000
to $1,000,000. Significant assumptions used irdtheslopment of the actuarial estimates includamete on the Company’s
historical claims data including average monthbjirls and average lag time between incurrence gudtieg of the claim.

(n) Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets arilitigsfor the future tax consequences attribwgabl differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existingeés and liabilities and their respective tax bad#sferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted tax rates expecteglhptagaxable income in the years in which thasaporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The Compangws the tax positions taken or expected to kentan tax returns to determine
whether and to what extent a benefit can be rezegrin our Consolidated Financial Statements. Refélote 8 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the amount of unrecogniagdenefits and other disclosures related to iaicetax positions. To the
extent interest and penalties would be assesstaking authorities on any underpayment of incomxe gach amounts are accrued
and classified as a component of income tax expense

(o) Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share are based on the weighted-avatagber of common shares outstanding.

(p) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of products to the Compatyssomers is recognized at the point of sale. @ists provided to customers at
the point of sale through the Weis Club Preferrbddper loyalty program are recognized as a redudaticales as products are sold.
Periodically, the Company will run a point baselbsancentive program that rewards customers withré sales discounts. The
Company makes reasonable and reliable estimatbe aimount of future discounts based upon histiogigaerience and its customer
data tracking software. Sales are reduced by thstgmates over the life of the program. Discotimtsustomers at the point of sale
provided by vendors, usually in the form of papaumons, are not recognized as a reduction in patesded the discounts are
redeemable at any retailer that accepts thoseutiseo The Company records “Deferred revenue”Herdale of gift cards and
revenue is recognized in “Net sales” at the timeustomer redemption for products. Gift card beggkincome is recognized in
“Operating, general and administrative expensesébaipon historical redemption patterns and reptgske balance of gift cards
for which the Company believes the likelihood alemption by the customer is remote. Sales taxdkided from “Net sales.” The
Company charges sales tax on all taxable custoorehases and remits these taxes monthly to theppate taxing jurisdiction.
Merchandise return activity is immaterial to revesuue to products being returned quickly and e¢keively low unit cost.

(q) Cost of Sales, Including Warehousing and Disifoution Expenses
“Cost of sales, including warehousing and distiitmuexpenses” consists of direct product costs ghdiscounts and allowances),
distribution center and transportation costs, dsagemanufacturing facility operations.

() Vendor Allowances

Vendor allowances related to the Company's buyitgraerchandising activities are recorded as a temuof cost of sales as they
are earned, in accordance with the underlying ageae Off-invoice and bill-back allowances aredusereduce direct product costs
upon the receipt of goods. Promotional rebatescagdits are accounted for as a reduction in tis¢ @binventory and recognized
when the related inventory is sold. Volume incemiiliscounts are realized as a reduction of cosalefs at the time it is deemed
probable and reasonably estimable that the inoetainget will be reached. Long-term contract iniees, which require an exclusive
vendor relationship, are allocated over the lifé¢hef contract. Promotional allowance funds forcfievendor-sponsored programs
are recognized as a reduction of cost of saleseaprogram occurs and the funds are earned pegteement. Cash discounts for
prompt payment of invoices are realized in costadés as invoices are paid. Warehouse and badlal@uances provided by
suppliers for distributing their product througle tBompany’s distribution system are recorded it absales offsetting costs
incurred. Warehouse rack and slotting allowancesecorded in cost of sales when new items atialigiset up in the Company's
distribution system, which is when the related egas are incurred and performance under the agreésreomplete. Swell
allowances for damaged goods are realized in dastles as provided by the supplier, helping tsetfproduct shrink losses also
recorded in cost of sales.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policiegcontinued)

() Vendor Allowances (continued)

Vendor allowances recorded as credits in costleSgataled $123.9 million in 2016, $97.0 million2015 and $89.5 million in
2014. Vendor paid cooperative advertising cretditaled $19.1 million in 2016, $17.1 million in 2D&And $16.0 million in 2014.
These credits were netted against advertising edggti “Operating, general and administrative exgpes.” The Company had
accounts receivable due from vendors of $852,0006842,000 for earned advertising credits and $a0llibn and $8.1 million for
earned promotional discounts as of December 316 26d December 26, 2015, respectively. The Compady$4.0 million and
$823,000 in unearned income included in accruddlilies for unearned vendor programs under longiteontracts for display and
shelf space allocation as of December 31, 201@mumber 26, 2015, respectively.

(s) Operating, General and Administrative Expenses

Business operating costs including expenses gekfimm administration and purchasing functions,racorded in “Operating,
general and administrative expenses” in the Codatdd Statements of Income. Business operatirtg cusdude items such as
wages, benefits, utilities, repairs and maintenaadeertising costs and credits, rent, insuranepretiation, leasehold amortization
and costs for outside provided services.

(t) Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incufired.Company recorded advertising expense, bgfrdor paid cooperative
advertising credits, of $26.3 million in 2016, $2&nillion in 2015 and $24.6 million in 2014 in “Oeing, general and
administrative expenses.”

(u) Rental Income
The Company leases or subleases space to tenaws@u, vacated and open store facilities. Reéntalme is recorded when earned
as a component of “Operating, general and admatiger expenses.” All leases are operating leasedisclosed in Note 5.

(v) Current Relevant Accounting Standards

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsi@q&ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (A30)4-09,Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 60@hich amended the existing accounting standandeefzenue recognition. ASU 2014-09
establishes principles for recognizing revenue upertransfer of promised goods or services tootnsts, in an amount that reflects
the expected consideration received in exchangthéme goods or services. The standard was Ipigéfective for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2016, inclydmerim periods within that reporting period. Aagust 2015, the FASB issued
a one-year deferral of the effective date of tle/ muidance resulting in it now being effective floe Company beginning in fiscal
year 2018. In March, April, May and December o1@@he FASB issued ASU 2016-08, ASU 2016-10, ASW&202 and ASU
2016-20, respectivelRevenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 8086¢h amends the guidance in ASU 2014-09. Early
adoption is not permitted. The amendments mayppéedl retrospectively to each prior period presdrar retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognized as of the date ofdh#pplication. The Company is currently in theqess of evaluating the impact of
adoption of the ASU. The Company expects thaatteption of the ASU will not have a significant iagh on the Company’s point
of sale product sales.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-RBEsentation of Financial Statements — Going Com¢8ubtopic 205-40)(Topic
718): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entit@bility to Continue as a Going ConcerASU 2014-15 provides guidance related
to management’s responsibility to evaluate whetthere is substantial doubt about the entity’s Bbib continue as a going concern
and to provide related note disclosures. The rawirements are effective for the annual periodsngnafter December 15, 2016,
and for interim periods and annual periods theeeafEarly adoption is permitted. Adoption of th8U did not have an impact on
the Company’s 2016 Consolidated Financial Statesnent

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-Iriventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measuremafiinventory ASU 2015-11
amends guidance on the measurement of inventony fsaver of cost or market to net realizable valié&e amendment applies to all
inventory other than those measured by Last-In-eg (LIFO) and the Retail Inventory Method (RIMyhe amendment is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decemb®y 2016, including interim periods within thapeogting period. Early adoption is
permitted. Adoption of the new ASU will not havenatterial impact on the Company’s Consolidated féra Statements.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policiegcontinued)
(v) Current Relevant Accounting Standards (contined)

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-Gfancial Instruments — Overall (Subtopic 825-1Rgcognition and Measurement
of Financial Assets and Financial LiabilitiesASU 2016-01 generally requires that equity itments (excluding equity method
investments) be measured at fair value with chamgésr value recognized in net income. ASU 2@i6also modifies certain
disclosure requirements related to financial assedsliabilities. Under existing GAAP, changesair fvalue of available-for-sale
equity investments are recorded in other comprahemscome. The Company expects that the adotigkSU 2016-01 will likely
have an impact on the net income reported in thegamy’s Consolidated Statements of Income butribisexpected to significantly
impact the Company’s comprehensive income or skédels’ equity. The amendment is effective focdilsyears beginning after
December 15, 2017, including interim periods witthiase fiscal years, with the cumulative effecthaf adoption made to the balance
sheet as of the date of adoption. Adoption wilutein a reclassification of the related accunedatinrealized appreciation, net of
applicable deferred income taxes, currently inctliteaccumulated other comprehensive income tanedaearnings, resulting in no
impact on the Company’s shareholders’ equity.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-83ses (Topic 842)ASU 2016-02 requires lessees to recognize assets an
liabilities for the rights and obligations creatagtheir leases with lease terms more than 12 nsonflurrent guidance only requires
capital leases to be recognized on the balance.shiesvever, the ASU 2016-02 now requires that lmatpital and operating leases
be recognized on the balance sheet. The effecasimflows will strictly depend on whether the &sclassified as an operating
lease or capital lease. The ASU 2016-02 will rejdisclosures to aid investors and other finarstatement users to better
understand the amount, timing and uncertainty efcsh flows arising from leases. These disclesare to include qualitative and
guantitative information about the amounts recoridetie financial statements. This ASU will haviinaited impact on the
accounting for leases by lessors. However, newaguiéd contains targeted improvements to align, whecessary, the lessor’s
accounting with the lessee’s accounting standaf#®J 2016-02 will become effective for annual pddgdeginning after December
15, 2018 and for interim periods within those flsgzars. Although the Company has not completedssessment, the Company
expects that the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will hav@gnificant impact on the Company’s Consoliddethnce Sheets.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-Didpilities — Extinguishments of Liabilities (Supio 405-20) Recognition of
Breakage for Certain Prepaid Stored-Value ProdudS$U 2016-04 requires the debtor to derecognilz@bdity, such as a prepaid
stored-value product, if and only if it has beetireguished by paying the creditor in cash, othearficial assets, goods or services or
if the debtor is relieved of its obligation legalbither judicially or by the creditor. ASU 2018-@lso requires that an entity must
disclose the methodology and specific judgementdeniaapplying the breakage recognized. ASU 20464 become effective for
the financial statements issued for the fiscal y&aginning after December 15, 2017 and interirroperwithin those fiscal years.
Early application is permitted including adoptionain interim period. The Company is currentlyria process of evaluating the
impact of adoption of the ASU. The Company exp#us the adoption of the ASU will not have a siigiaint impact on the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 20178siness Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying thefibition of a BusinessThe
ASU attempts to clarify the definition of a busiadsy better defining the teroutputand requiring that to be considered a business
the entity must (1) include, at a minimum, an inpod a substantive process that together signtficaantribute to the ability to
create an output and (2) remove the evaluationhelnet market participant could replace missing el#s1 The amendments in
ASU 2017-01 are effective for fiscal years begignaiter December 15, 2017, including interim pesi@dthin those periods. The
amendments should be applied prospectively onter tife effective date. No disclosures are requatetie time of transition. The
Company expects that the adoption of the ASU watlmave a significant impact on the Company’s Cbdated Financial
Statements .

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017iAtgngibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Siifyphg the Test for Goodwiill
Impairment The ASU eliminates Step 2 from the goodwill airment test which had an entity perform procedtmedetermine the
fair value of its assets and liabilities at the &inment testing date. The entity is now requitgdjer ASU 2017-04, to perform the
goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair valof a reporting unit with its carrying amount aedognizing an impairment
charge when the carrying amount exceeds the regautiit’s fair value. The loss should not excdegltbtal amount of goodwill
allocated to the reporting unit. The ASU also efiaies requirements for reporting units with a zeroegative carrying amount to
perform a qualitative assessment. Therefore,ahesmpairment assessment applies to all repautiitg. ASU 2017-04 should be
applied prospectively and requires the disclosfitt@nature and reason for the change in accagptimciple upon transition, in the
first interim and annual period the ASU is inittaidopted. The amendments in ASU 2017-04 aretaféefor the annual or interim
goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginnafter December 15, 2019. Early adoption is péetiit The Company expects that
the adoption of the ASU will not have a significampact on the Company’s Consolidated Financialestents.
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Note 2 Marketable Securities
The Company’s marketable securities are all cleskids available-for-sale within “Current Assets’the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets. FASB has established three lef/glputs that may be used to measure fair value:
Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted pricastine markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 Observable inputs, other than Level 1 isp active markets, that are observable eithrexcty or indirectly; and
Level 3 Unobservable inputs for which there i8dibr no market data, which require the reporéngty to develop its
own assumptions.
The Company’s marketable securities valued usingL# inputs include highly liquid equity securgjeor which quoted market
prices are available. The Company’s bond portfgliealued using Level 2 input§he Company’s municipal bonds are valued using
a combination of pricing for similar securitiesceatly executed transactions, cash flow models yiéhd curves and other pricing
models utilizing observable inputs, which are cdestd Level 2 inputs.

For Level 2 investment valuation, the Company zg##i standard pricing procedures of its investmewisary firm(s), which include
various third party pricing services. These praced also require specific price monitoring pragias well as pricing review
reports, valuation oversight and pricing challepgecedures to maintain the most accurate reprdgamtz investment fair market
value.

The Company accrues interest on its bond portthlioughout the life of each bond held. Dividenasf the equity securities are
recognized as received. Both interest and dividemd recognized in “Investment income and intexggense” on the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Income.
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Note 2 Marketable Securities (continued)
Marketable securities, as of December 31, 2016CsuwEmber 26, 2015, consisted of:

Gross Gross
(dollars in thousands) Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 31, 20: Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Value
Available-for-sale
Level 1
Equity securities $ 1,198 $ 8,162 $ - $ 9,360
Level 2
Municipal bonds 57,739 531 (459 57,811
$ 58,937 $ 8,693 $ (459) $ 67,171
Gross Gross
(dollars in thousands) Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 26, 20: Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Value
Available-for-sale
Level 1
Equity securities $ 1,198 $ 6,682 $ - $ 7,880
Level 2
Municipal bonds 82,347 1,468 (66) 83,749
$ 83,545 $ 8,150 $ (66) $ 91,629

Maturities of marketable securities classified eailable-for-sale at December 31, 2016, were devid:

Amortized Fair

(dollars in thousands) Cost Value
Available-for-sale

Due within one year $ 6,144 $ 6,179

Due after one year through five years 27,780 27,972

Due after five years through ten years 20,317 20,162

Due after ten years 3,498 3,498

Equity securities 1,198 9,360

$ 58,937 $ 67,171

The Company also maintains a non-qualified suppfeat@xecutive retirement plan and a non-qualifisedrmacist deferred
compensation plan for certain of its associateswhilows them to defer income to future perioBgurticipants in the plans earn a
return on their deferrals based on mutual fundstments. The Company chooses to invest in therlyirng mutual fund

investments to offset the liability associated with non-qualified deferred compensation planschSavestments are reported on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as “SERRtiment,” are classified as trading securities apch@easured at fair value
using Level 1 inputs with gains and losses incluigetinvestment income and interest expense” onGbepany’s Consolidated
Statements of Income. The changes in the underliability to the associates are recorded in “@piag, general and administrative
expenses.”
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Note 3 Inventories
Merchandise inventories, as of December 31, 20@idmtember 26, 2015, were valued as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2016 2015

LIFO $ 223,294 $ 181,321

Average cost 53,489 48,078
$ 276,782 $ 229,399

Management believes the use of the LIFO methoddtuing certain inventories represents the most@pgate matching of costs
and revenues in the Company'’s circumstances.l ilivantories were valued on the average cost ntetihich approximates current
cost, total inventories would have been $79,128480$81,347,000 higher than as reported on theealmethods as of December
31, 2016 and December 26, 2015, respectively. Quidi5, the Company had certain decrements inf® Ipools, which had an
insignificant impact on the cost of sales.

Note 4 Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, as of December 31, 201®aacedmber 26, 2015, consisted of:

Useful Life

(dollars in thousands) (in years) 2016 2015
Land $ 134,81¢ $ 106,125
Buildings and improvements 10-60 655,487 586,903
Equipment 3-12 1,033,967 949,975
Leasehold improvements 5-20 205,506 190,249

Total, at cost 2,029,77: 1,833,252
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,151,578 1,094,267

$ 878,19t $ 738,985
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Note 5 Lease Commitments

At December 31, 2016, the Company leased approglynaé% of its open store facilities under opergigases that expire at
various dates through 2033. These leases generalyde for fixed annual rentals; however, severalvide for minimum annual
rentals plus contingent rentals as a percentagaraial sales and a number of leases require thep&uonto pay for all or a portion

of insurance, real estate taxes, water and sewtalseand repairs, the cost of which is chargettiéaelated expense category rather
than being accounted for as rent expense. Mastedieases contain multiple renewal options, umdech the Company may extend
the lease terms from 5 to 20 years. Rents on tipghaases, including agreements with step remescharged to expense on a
straight-line basis over the minimum lease ternaldifionally, the Company has operating leases déotain transportation and other
equipment.

Rent expense and income on all leases consisted of:

(dollars in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Minimum annual rentals $ 38,632 $ 34,794 $ 35,183
Contingent rentals 431 452 409
Lease or sublease income (7,212 (7,069 (6,881)
$ 31,851 $ 28,177 $ 28,711

The following is a schedule by years of future miam rental payments required under operating leasg$otal minimum sublease
and lease rental income to be received that hatial ior remaining non-cancelable lease terms itess of one year as of December
31, 2016.

(dollars in thousands) Leases Subleases
2017 $ 43512 $ (4,087)
2018 42,603 (3,716)
2019 35,710 (2,712)
2020 28,229 (2,461)
2021 22,031 (2,106)
Thereafter 80,060 (9,850)
$ 252,14t  $ (24,932)

The Company did not have a liability accrued aBetember 31, 2016 but had $32,000 accrued as @rbleer 26, 2015, for future
minimum rental payments due on previously closedest reduced by the estimated sublease income riackived. The future
minimum rental payments required under operatingds and estimated sublease income for thesedosatie included in the above
schedule.
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Note 6 Retirement Plans

The Company has a qualified retirement savings, plenWeis Markets, Inc. Retirement Savings Plamedng substantially all full-
time associates. The plan has a contributory coexpoas well as a noncontributory profit-sharingiponent for certain associates.
The noncontributory component covers eligible asges which included certain salaried associatesg snanagement and
administrative support personnel. The Company ladsothree non-qualified supplemental retiremesmiplovering highly
compensated employees of the Company. The Companlity is to fund retirement plan costs as aatyuéth the exception of the
deferred compensation plan. Employer contributiorthe qualified retirement plan are made at tie discretion of the Company.

Retirement plan costs:

(dollars in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Retirement savings plan 3,593 3,161 3,010
Deferred compensation plan 788 (318) 1,328
Supplemental executive retirement plan 909 484 1,061
Deferred compensation plan for pharmacists 284 (165) (228)
$ 5,574 $ 3,162 $ 5,171

The Company maintains a non-qualified deferred eamsption plan for the payment of specific amouhtnaual retirement benefits
to certain officers or their beneficiaries overamuarially computed normal life expectancy. Cutlse there are no active officers in
the plan. The expected payments under the plangiwos were determined through actuarial calcotetidependent on the age of
the recipient, using an assumed discount rate. pldreis unfunded and accounted for on an accragikb The recorded liability at
December 31, 2016 is $6,077,000, which is baseskpacted payments to be made over the remainiag ¥ the beneficiaries.

This amount is included in “Accrued expenses” aRdstretirement benefit obligations” in the Consat@t Balance Sheets. The
expected payment amounts are approximately $1,006d0 2017 and approximately $1,013,000 for thargehereafter dependent
on the lives of the beneficiaries.

The Company also maintains a non-qualified suppfeat@xecutive retirement plan and a non-qualifiedrmacist deferred
compensation plan for certain of its associatdses€ plans are designed to provide retirement iteaeid salary deferral
opportunities because of limitations imposed bylttiernal Revenue Code and the Regulations implésadoy the Internal Revenue
Service. These plans are unfunded and accountexhfan accrual basis. Participants in these @am&xcluded from participation
in the profit sharing portion of the Weis Markdts;. Retirement Savings Plan once their yearlyiagmexceed the IRS highly
compensated threshold. The Board of Directors allindetermines the amount of the allocation toplzs at its sole discretion.
The allocation among the various plan participétaade in both flat dollar amounts and in relaltp to their compensation. Plan
participants are 100% vested in their accounts afteyears of service with the Company. Benefits distributed among
participants upon reaching the applicable retirdrage. Substantial risk of benefit forfeiture deasst for participants in these
plans. The present value of accumulated benefituated to $11,176,000 and $9,079,000 at Decenlhet(3 6 and December 26,
2015, respectively, and is included in “Postretieairbenefit obligations” in the Consolidated Baku$heets.

The Company has no other postretirement benefiispla
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Note 7 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
All balances in accumulated other comprehensivermeare related to available-for-sale marketahtersities. The following table
sets forth the balance of the Company’s accumulatieel comprehensive income, net of tax.

Unrealized Gains
on Available-for-Sale

(dollars in thousands) Marketable Securities
Accumulated other comprehensive income balancé s@ember 27, 2014 $ 4,829
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifioati (52)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated othengrehensive income (16)
Net current period other comprehensive (68)
Accumulated other comprehensive income balancé ae@mber 26, 2015 $ 4,761
Other comprehensive income before reclassifica 348
Amounts reclassified from accumulated othengehensive income (257)
Net current period other comprehensive inc 91
Accumulated other comprehensive income balancé Be@mber 31, 2016 $ 4,852

The following table sets forth the effects on metoime of the amounts reclassified out of accumdlateer comprehensive income
for the periods ended December 31, 2016, Decenthe2@5 and December 27, 2014.

Gains Reclassified from
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income to the
Consolidated Statements of Income
(dollars in thousands) Location 2016 2015 2014

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale
marketable securities

Investment income $ 437 % 27 % 63
Provision for income taxes (180 (11 (26)
Total amount reclassified, net of tax $ 257 % 16 $ 37
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Note 8 Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consigts o
(dollars in thousands)

2016 2015 2014

Current:

Federal $ 25,908 $ 29,888 $ 24,809

State 5,888 3,325 1,237
Deferred:

Federal 6,020 (188) 2,559

State (317 (24 676

$ 37,499 $ 33,001 $ 29,281

The reconciliation of income taxes computed affélieral statutory rate (35% in 2016, 2015 and 2@d.4he provision for income
taxes is:
(dollars in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Income taxes at federal statutory rate $ 43631 $ 32,316 $ 29,282
State income taxes, net of federal income tax lienef 2,413 1,112 1,436
Deferred tax on gain on bargain purchase (8,358 - -
Other (187) (427 (1,437)

Provision for income taxes (effective tax rate 36,B85.7% and 35.0%, respectively) $ 37499 $ 33,001 $ 29,281

Cash paid for federal income taxes was $27.3 mijllg28.0 million and $25.0 million in 2016, 201502014 respectively. Cash
paid for state income taxes was $3.7 million, $8ition and $1.8 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014pestively.

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to deferred tax assets and deferred taxiliglsilat December 31, 2016 and

December 26, 2015, are:
(dollars in thousands)

2016 2015
Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable $ 586 $ 813
Compensated absences 1,076 983
Employment incentives 9,826 3,143
Employee benefit plans 9,243 10,485
General liability insurance 4,359 4,048
Postretirement benefit obligations 6,484 5,906
Net operating loss carryforwards 5,600 5,926
Other 2,224 2,173
Total deferred tax assets 39,398 33,477
Deferred tax liabilities:
Inventories (7,619) (6,808)
Unrealized gains on marketable securities (3,382 (3,323)
Nondeductible accruals and other (7,517) (9,240)
Depreciation (140,325 (111,126)
Total deferred tax liabilities (158,843) (130,497)
Net deferred tax liability $ (119,445 $ (97,020)
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Note 8 Income Taxes (continued)
The following table summarizes the activity relatedhe Company’s unrecognized tax benefits:

(dollars in thousands) 2016 2015

Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year $ 1,264 $ -
Increases based on tax positions related to threrduyear 1,563 1,264
Additions for tax positions of prior year 297 -
Reductions for tax positions of prior years - -
Settlements - -
Expiration of the statute of limitations for assesst of taxes - -
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year $ 3,124 $ 1,264

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits tifia¢cognized, would affect the effective tax rates $1,860,000 in 2016 and
$1,264,000 in 2015.

The Company’s U.S. Federal income tax filings hlb@en examined by the Internal Revenue Service ¢lr@008. The Company or
one of its subsidiaries files tax returns in vasigtates. The tax years subject to examinatiéteimsylvania, where the majority of
the Company's revenues are generated, are 200460 2

The Company has net operating loss carryforward@86f2 million available for state income tax pwsp®. The net operating losses
will begin to expire starting in 2027. The Compaxpects to fully utilize these net operating loagyforwards.
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Note 9 Acquisition of Business

Fiscal 2016 Acquisitions

On August 1, 2016, the Company purchased five NBayser Market stores located in Maryland. Weis Mgskinc. acquired these
locations and their operations in an effort to exp#s presence in the Baltimore County regione Tésults of operations of the
former Mars Super Market acquisition are includethie accompanying Consolidated Financial Statesrfeotn the date of
acquisition. The five former Mars Super Marketstocontributed $38.0 million to sales in 2016.e Tash purchase price paid was
$24.6 million for the property, equipment, inveréss prepaid expenses and goodwill related topthishase. The Company
accounted for this transaction as a business catibmin accordance with the acquisition methotie Tair value of intangibles was
determined based on the discounted cash flow naakproperty and equipment were determined basedtemal appraisals. Weis
Markets, Inc. assumed two lease obligations irattiuisition of the former Mars Super Market staed entered into two new lease
agreements. Goodwill of $13.3 million has beerrded, based upon the expected benefits to beadefism new management
business strategy and cost synergies. The $18i8muof goodwill is deductible for tax purpose$he purchase price has been
allocated to the acquired assets as follows.

The following table summarizes the fair valueshsf assets acquired and liabilities assumed atdteeal acquisition. The fair values
of the acquired assets and assumed liabilitiesegrerted below.

5 Mars Super Market Stores

(dollars in thousands) August 1, 2016
Inventorie: $ 1,267
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 248
Property and equipment 7,305
Goodwill 13,255
Intangibles - favorable leasehold interest, net 2,495
Total fair value of assets acquired $ 24,570
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Note 9 Acquisition of Business (continued)

Fiscal 2016 Acquisitions (continued)

In September 2016, the Company began its acquisifi@8 former Food Lion, LLC stores. Within eigi¢eks, ending in October
2016, Weis Markets acquired 21 Maryland, 13 Virgiand 4 Delaware former Food Lion, LLC stores. fdsalts of operations of
the 38 former Food Lion, LLC stores are includethia accompanying Consolidated Financial Statenfemits the date of
acquisition. The Company accounted for this tratisa as a business combination in accordancetitacquisition method. The
fair value of intangibles was determined basedherdiscounted cash flow model and property andpegeint were determined based
on external appraisals. The acquired locationgwart of a FTC forced diversiture in the apprqralcess of the merger of Ahold
and Delhaize Group, which resulted in a below¥alue purchase price consideration. The cash peecprice paid was $29.4
million for the property, equipment, inventoriesepaid expenses and liabilities. Weis Markets, &ssumed thirty lease obligations
and ownership of eight locations. The Companygetzed a gain of $23.9 million on the purchasehef38 former Food Lion, LLC
stores. The 38 acquired Food Lion, LLC locatioostabuted $92.5 million to sales in 2016.

The following table summarizes the fair valueshaf assets acquired and liabilities assumed atdteeal acquisition. The fair values
of the acquired assets and assumed liabilitiesegrerted below.

38 Food Lion, LLC Stores

(dollars in thousands) Sept. 11 - Oct. 30, 2016
Assett $
Current:
Accounts receivable, net 146
Inventories 7,614
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,044
Total current assets 8,804
Property and equipment, net 60,735
Intangibles - favorable leasehold interest 4,583
Total assets 74,122
Liabilities
Current:
Accrued expenses (428)
Total current liabilities (428)
Other - unfavorable leasehold interest (3,738)
Deferred tax liability (16,663)
Total liabilities (20,829)
Total fair value of assets acquired and liabilitiesassumed $ 53,293
Gain on bargain purchase $ 23,879
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Note 9 Acquisition of Business (continued)

Fiscal 2016 Acquisitions (continued)

On October 30, 2016, Weis Markets acquired a forlkedk's Family Market store located in East Berl#A from C&S Wholesale
Grocers. The results of operations of the formelt’iFamily Market acquisition are included in thecompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements from the date of acquisitibhe purchase price was $13.0 million , of which4$3illion is payable over a 4
year term for the property, equipment, inventongpaid expenses and liabilities. The Company atealfor this transaction as a
business combination in accordance with the adiprismethod. The fair value of intangibles wasetetined based on the
discounted cash flow model and property and equippmvere determined based on external appraisdis.farmer Nell's Family
Market contributed $3.0 million worth of sales i015. Goodwill of $3.9 million has been recordedsdd upon the expected benefits
to be derived from new management business strated)gost synergies. The $3.9 million of goodisilleductible for tax
purposes.

The following table summarizes the fair valueshaf assets acquired and liabilities assumed atdteeal acquisition. The fair values
of the acquired assets and assumed liabilitiesegrerted below.

Nell's Family Market Store

(dollars in thousands) October 30, 2016
Asset: $
Current:
Inventories 401
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 39
Total current assets 440
Property and equipment, net 8,625
Goodwill 3,913
Intangible and other assets, net 23
Total assets 13,001
Liabilities
Current:
Accrued expenses 3)
Total current liabilities 3)
Total fair value of assets acquired and liabilitiesassumed $ 12,998

The pro forma information includes historical réswf operations of the 38 former Food Lion Supek®agand 5 former Mars Super
Market stores but does not include efficienciest ceductions, synergies or investments in lowaregrfor the Company’s customers
expected to result from the acquisitions. The ditad pro forma financial information is not necady indicative of the results that
actually would have occurred had the 38 former Hdod Supermarket and the 5 former Mars Super Mastares been acquired at
the beginning of 2014. Pro forma results of sadssuming the acquisitions had taken place ateégahbing of 2014, are included in
the following table. The Company does not haviabét information to provide additional pro formaadosures.

(dollars in thousands)

For the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2 2016 2015 2014
December 26, 2015 and December 27, . (53 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks)
Sales $ 3,563,14¢ $ 3,424,414 $ 3,317,174

Fiscal 2015 Acquisitions

The Company paid $7.9 million for the property auglipment related to the purchase of a store irokdam Pennsylvania on August
31, 2015 from C&S Wholesale Grocers to expand otimmearket share. The purchase price was allodatgeen land, building and
equipment of $1.9 million, $5.9 million and $11200@espectively, in accordance with our accounialicies for business
combinations. No Goodwill was recognized.

Fiscal 2014 Acquisitions

There were no acquisitions for fiscal 2014.
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Note 10 Summary of Quarterly Results (Unaudited)
Quarterly financial data for 2016 and 2015 areodlews:

Fourteen Weeks

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) Thirteen Weeks Ended Ended

March 26, 2016 June 25, 2016 September 24, 2016 December 31, 2016
Net sale $ 738204 $ 730,432 $ 742,98€ $ 925,097
Gross profit on sales 207,112 201,938 204,864 258,241
Gain on bargain purchase - - - 23,879
Net incom 20,129 15,265 10,628 41,140
Basic and diluted earnings per share $ .75 $ .57 $ .40 $ 1.52
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) Thirteen Weeks Ended

March 28, 2015 June 27,2015 September 26, 2015 December 26, 2015
Net sale $ 712,42¢ $ 718,38C $ 711,87¢ $ 734,063
Gross profit on sales 195,115 198,919 194,147 198,551
Net incom 13,323 16,644 12,788 16,575
Basic and diluted earnings per share $ .50 $ .62% .48 $ .61

Note 11 Fair Value Information

The carrying amounts for cash, accounts receivatdeaccounts payable approximate fair value beaafuse short maturities of
these instruments. The fair values of the Compamarketable securities, as disclosed in Notee2based on quoted market prices
and institutional pricing guidelines for those sdties not classified as Level 1 securities. Thenpany’'s SERP investments are
classified as trading securities and are carriddiavalue using Level 1 inputs. The carrying amioof long-term debt approximates
fair value as interest rates on this debt agreeaqgmtoximates current market rates.

Note 12 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various legal actiorising out of the normal course of business. They@any also accrues for tax
contingencies when it is probable that a liabild@ya taxing authority has been incurred and theusrnof the contingency can be
reasonably estimated, based on experience. logiméon of management, the ultimate dispositiothese matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company's conselitifihancial position, results of operations ouidity.

Note 13 Long-Term Debt

On September 1, 2016 Weis Markets entered into@viag credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, iNiaal Association (the
Credit Agreement). The Credit Agreement providesah unsecured revolving credit facility with aygeegate principal amount not
to exceed $100.0 million with an additional disimeary amount available of $50.0 million. As ofd@enber 31, 2016, $64.5 million
of the available $100.0 million was borrowed frdme tredit facility. On March 13, 2017, the unsecurevolving credit facility was
increased to $120.0 million. The loan will beaenest on the outstanding principal amount at thermonth LIBOR rate plus the
applicable margin rate of 0.65% until its Maturity September 1, 2019. The loan was used to funcetent acquisitions and the
Company’s working Capital requirements. The omhafficial covenant in the credit facility requirég tCompany’s minimum
EBITDA to be at least $75.0 million. The Creditrdgment is also being utilized by the Company dttets of credit. As of
December 31, 2016, the Company had $16.7 millibthevthen available $100.0 million from the crefditility, committed to
outstanding letters of credit. The letters of @rade maintained primarily to support performanegyment, deposit or surety
obligations of the Company. The Company does ntitipate drawing on any of them.

Interest expense related to long-term debt was $80Xor 2016.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Weis Markets, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineet of Weis Markets, Inc. as of December 316 2and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensoanie, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows folstheveek period ended
December 31, 2016. Our audit also included thenfira statement schedule of Weis Markets, Incedish Item 15(c)(3). These
financial statements and financial statement sdeeahe the responsibility of the Company's managen@ur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statementsamedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@q&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdintecial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examingrga test basis, evidence supporting the amoudtslizclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing tteuating principles used and significant estimat@sle by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@raWe believe that our audit provides a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of
Weis Markets, Inc. as of December 31, 2016, andeselts of their operations and their cash floarstifie 53 week period ended
December 31, 2016 in conformity with U.S. generaltgepted accounting principles. Also, in our aminithe related financial
statement schedule for the 53 week period endedrbieer 31, 2016, when considered in relation tdo#séc consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly) inatlerial respects, the information set forth éer

We also have audited, in accordance with the stalsd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Weis
Markets, Inc.’s internal control over financial oefing as of December 31, 2016, based on critesti@ddished in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiing Organizations of the Treadway Commissiopdh3, and our report
dated March 16, 2017 expressed an unqualified opion the effectiveness of Weis Markets, Inc.’sfinal control over financial
reporting.

/s RSM US LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 16, 2017
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Weis Markets, Inc.

We have audited Weis Markets, Inc.'s internal ardver financial reporting as of December 31, 20da#ed on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issugdhe Committee of Sponsoring Organizations oftreadway Commission in
2013. Weis Markets, Inc.’'s management is respoaddsl maintaining effective internal control ovardncial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accomgagy'Management’s Report On
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting”. Our pessibility is to express an opinion on the compaimternal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@q&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amndibtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all materggpects. Our audit included obtaining an undedétgnof internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a malteveakness exists, and testing and evaluatieglésign and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed riska@dit also included performing such other procedwas we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit pexs/a@l reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonablesasuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fioah reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (a) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detilrately and fairly reflect the transactions disgositions of the assets of the
company; (b) provide reasonable assurance thaactinns are recorded as necessary to permit @tépaof financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of tmepamy are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (c) provide reasonasderrance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asitjon, use or disposition of the company's astd&tscould have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiagde subject to the risk that controls may becimmeequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance witihpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Weis Markets, Inc. maintained, ihnaaterial respects, effective internal controkofinancial reporting as of
December 31, 2016, based on criteria establishétténnal Control — Integrated Framework issuedh®sy Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 2013.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stalsd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the
consolidated balance sheet of Weis Markets, Inof &cember 31, 2016, and the related consolidstetéments of income,
comprehensive income, shareholders' equity andftmsh for the 53 week period ended December 31621 Weis Markets, Inc.
and our report dated March 16, 2017, expressedhaualified opinion.

/s RSM US LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 16, 2017
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Weis Markets, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheet of Weis Markets, Inc. as of December P852and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensoanir, shareholders' equity and cash flows for e&the 52 week periods ended
December 26, 2015 and December 27, 2014. Our aalddsncluded the financial statement schedulefmh of the 52 week periods
ended December 26, 2015 and December 27, 201dnatli5(c)(3). These financial statements and scheahal the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility iexjoress an opinion on these financial statemendssahedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwlof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ifd@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet énidibtain reasonable assurance about whethdintnecial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examinorga test basis, evidence supporting the amoudtsisclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing twuating principles used and significant estimatesle by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@raWe believe that our audit provides a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
Weis Markets, Inc. at December 26, 2015, and tmsaalated results of its operations and its céshd for each of the 52 week
periods ended December 26, 2015 and December 24, #0conformity with U.S. generally accepted againg principles. Also in
our opinion, the related financial statement scledr each of the 52 week periods ended Decembe@15 and December 27,
2014, when considered in relation to the basicniiia statements taken as a whole, presents fairlgll material respects the
information set forth therein.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 18, 2016
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure:
None.

Item 9a. Controls and Procedures:

Management’s Report on Disclosure Controls and Pradures

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finan¢ificer of the Company (its principal executivéiodér and principal financial
officer, respectively) have concluded, based oir thaluation as of the close of the period covérgthis Report, that the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures &xetok to ensure that information required to eldsed by the Company in the
reports filed or submitted by it under the Secesitexchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recordedegsed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in th&CS rules and forms, and include controls andguiores designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Compiarsuch reports is accumulated and communicatétet@ompany's
management, including the Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allimvely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible fabkshing and maintaining adequate internal cdmtver financial reporting (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Athder the supervision and with the participatibmanagement, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finah@fficer, the Company conducted an evaluatiothefeffectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting based on the fraumik issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitina of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrafedmework (2013 framework). The Company’s integwitrol system was
designed to provide reasonable assurance to th@&uyis management and board of directors regattimgreparation and fair
presentation of published financial statementd.im¢rnal control systems, no matter how well dasd, have inherent limitations.
Therefore, even those systems determined to betigffecan provide only reasonable assurance wipee to financial statement
preparation and presentation. Based on the Congaumgluation, management concluded that the Coypamternal control over
financial reporting was effective as of DecemberZ116.

RSM US LLP, an independent registered public acgogrirm, has audited the Consolidated Financtat&nents included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and, as part of theditalnas issued their attestation report on the gamy’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2016. Thmrecan be found in Item 8 of this Annual Repartrmrm 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

Except as noted in the preceding paragraphs, tere no changes in the Company’s internal contvet éinancial reporting during
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, that lsdsrially affected, or is reasonably likely to mahy affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Iltem 9b. Other Information:

There was no information required on Form 8-K daitinis quarter that was not reported.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace:

In addition to the information reported in Parf klis Form 10-K under the caption “Executive Odfis of the Registrant,” “Election
of Directors,” “Board Committees and Meeting Attande, Audit Committee,” “Corporate Governance Matté'‘Compensation
Tables” and “Stock Ownership, Section 16(a) Benefiownership Reporting Compliance” of the Weis kis, Inc. definitive
proxy statement dated March 16, 2017 are incorpdrhgérein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation:

“Board Committees and Meeting Attendance, Compé@rs@&ommittee,” “Executive Compensation, Compemsabiscussion and
Analysis,” “Compensation Committee Report,” “Compation Tables” and “Other Information Concerning Board of Directors,

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Eigetion” of the Weis Markets, Inc. definitive prostatement dated March 16,
2017 are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters:
“Stock Ownership” of the Weis Markets, Inc. definit proxy statement dated March 16, 2017 is incafsal herein by reference.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence:

“Other Information Concerning the Board of DirestoReview and Approval of Related Party Transasti@amd “Independence of
Directors” of the Weis Markets, Inc. definitive pgostatement dated March 16, 2017 are incorporiateein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services:

“Ratification Of Appointment Of Independent Regrst Public Accounting Firm” of the Weis Marketsclmefinitive proxy
statement dated March 16, 2017 is incorporatedrinbgereference.
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PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules:

(a)(1) The Company’s 2016 Consolidated Financial Statesnemdl the Report of Independent Registered Pulsihioénting Firm
are included in Item 8 of Part II.

Financial Statements Page
Consolidated Balance Sheets 22
Consolidated Statements of Income 23
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 24
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity 25
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 26
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 27
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm 45

(a8)(2) Financial statement schedules requirecethlédd by Item 8 of this form, and by Item 15(q)&low:
Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accountsgpa?2 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

All other schedules for which provision is madetia applicable accounting regulation of the Semgiand Exchange Commission
are not required under the related instructiorsrerinapplicable and therefore have been omitted.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules: (continugd

(8)(3) A listing of exhibits filed or incorporatdxy reference is as follows:

Exhibit No. Exhibits

3-A Articles of Incorporation, filed as exhibit 4.1 Form S-8 on September 13, 2002 and incorporatezirhby reference.

3-B By-Laws, filed as exhibit under Part 1V, Iter(t) in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the éisgear ended December 29, 2001
and incorporated herein by reference.

10-A Retirement Savings Plan, amended September 16,8l fled with this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

10-B Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, fdedxhibit under Part 1V, Item 15(a)(3) in the AahReport on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 and incorpibiatesin by reference. *

10-C Deferred Compensation Plan for Pharmacists, filedxibit under Part IV, Item 15(a)(3) in the AnhRaport on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 26, 2009 and incorpibiatesin by reference.

10-D Executive Benefits Agreement between the Caomaad Robert F. Weis, Chairman of the Board, sigmeMarch 24, 2006,
commencing immediately and continuing thereaftesugh December 31, 2023, filed on Form 8-K MarchZD6 and incorporated
herein by reference. *

10-E Deferred Compensation Agreement between the Comgrachyvir. Robert F. Weis, filed as exhibit undertPdr Iltem 15(a)(3) in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year esh@®cember 26, 2009 and incorporated herein byaete. *

10-F Executive Employment Agreement between the amy and Jonathan H. Weis, Vice Chairman, PresihiChief Executive
Officer, signed on July 14, 2014, with retroactdféect to January 1, 2014 and continuing&adter through December 31, 2016, fi
as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K July 18, 2014 and ipaoated herein by reference. *

10-G Chief Executive Office Incentive Award Plan betweéka Company and Jonathan H. Weis, Chairman, Res&hd Chief Executive
Officer, effective July 1, 2011, amended and resta&tfective as of January 1, 2014 and continuieggafter through December 31,
2016, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K July 18,120and incorporated herein by reference. *

10-H Confidential Separation Agreement and GerRe#tase between the Company and David J. Hepfikgemer President and Chief
Executive Officer, signed on September 21, 201&d fas Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q November 7, 20d@ iacorporated herein by
reference. *

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed with this AiahReport on Form 10-K

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification - CEO, filed witlis Annual Report on Form 10-K

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification - CFO, filed with tAsinual Report on Form 10-K

32 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13#€d with this Annual Report on Form 10-K

* Management contract or compensatory plan arnmege

The Company will provide a copy of any exhibit upeceipt of a written request for the particulahibit or exhibits desired. All
requests should be addressed to the Company’sgalrexecutive offices.

(b) The Company files as exhibits to this AnnuapBrt on Form 10-K, those exhibits listed in Iteb{d)(3) above.
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Item 15(c)(3). Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts:

SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
WEIS MARKETS, INC.

(dollars in thousands)

Col. A Col. B Col. C Col. D Col. E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and Accounts Deductions End of
Description of Period Expenses Describe Describe)(1 Period
Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2(
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for uncollectible accounts $ 1,967 $ 1,145 $ - $ 1,657 $ 1,455
Fiscal Year ended December 26, 2015:
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for uncollectible accounts $ 1,578 $ 1,438 $ - $ 1,049 $ 1,967
Fiscal Year ended December 27, 2014:
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for uncollectible accounts $ 1,882 $ 577 $ - $ 881 $ 1,578

(1) Deductions are uncollectible accounts writténreet of recoveries.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary:

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedeti@o duly authorized.

WEIS MARKETS, INC.
(Registrant)

Date 03/16/2017 /S/Jonathan H. Weis
Jonathan H. Weis
Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer
and Director
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

Date 03/16/2017 S/Jonathan H. Weis
Jonathan H. Weis
Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer
and Director
(principal executive officer)

Date 03/16/2017 /S/Scott F. Frost
Scott F. Frost
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer
(principal financial officer)

Date 03/16/2017 [S/Harold G. Graber
Harold G. Graber

Senior Vice President of Real Estate and Developmen
and Secretary
and Director

Date 03/16/2017 [S/Dennis G. Hatchell
Dennis G. Hatchell
Director

Date 03/16/2017 [S/Edward J. Lauth Il
Edward J. Lauth 1l
Director

Date 03/16/2017 /SIGerrald B. Silverman
Gerrald B. Silverman
Director

Date 03/16/2017 [S/Jeanette R. Rogers
Jeanette R. Rogers
Vice President Corporate Controller
(principal accounting officer)
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Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
State of Percent Owned
Incorporation By Registrant
Dutch Valley Food Company, LLC Pennsylvania 100%
Weis Transportation, LLC Pennsylvania 100%
Delaware 100%

WMK Financing, Inc.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include tceunts of the Company and its subsidiaries.



WEIS MARKETS, INC.
Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION- CEO

[, Jonathan H. Weis, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fKVeis Markets, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatemny untrue statement of a material fact ortéonstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statements wade, not misleading with
respect to the periods covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeendf, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}End 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forringistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedatee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entiti@stigularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

b) designed such internal controls over finan@gbrting, or caused such internal control ovearfirial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide regde assurance regarding the reliability of finaheporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presenttlsi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (tlggsteant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case oAamual Report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contraler financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control

over financial reporting, to the registrant’s aoditand the audit committee of registrant’s bodrdir@ctors (or persons

performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal ctstreer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and report
financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslymanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 16, 2017 /S/ Jonathan H. Weis

Jonathan H. Weis
Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer



WEIS MARKETS, INC.
Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION- CFO

I, Scott F. Frost, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fKVeis Markets, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatemny untrue statement of a material fact ortéonstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statements wade, not misleading with
respect to the periods covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present
in all material respects the financial conditiogsults of operations and cash flows of the regis@a of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forringistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

b) designed such internal controls over finan@gbrting, or caused such internal control ovearfirial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide regde assurance regarding the reliability of finaheporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttlsi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’'s internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (tlggsteant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case oAamual Report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contraler financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control

over financial reporting, to the registrant’s aoditand the audit committee of registrant’s bodrdir@ctors (or persons

performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal ctstreer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and report
financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineshmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 16, 2017 /S/ Scott F. Frost

Scott F. Frost
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Weis Magdnc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the fisgahr ending December 31,
2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the "Report"), we, fllaraH. Weis, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, and Scoftriest, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial &ffiand Treasurer, of the
Company, certify, pursuant to and for purposes8o)1S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tode@@6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) to my knowledge the Report fully complies wilie requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of teeusities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of
the Company.

/S/ Jonathan H. Weis

Jonathan H. Weis

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
03/16/2017

/S/ Scott F. Frost

Scott F. Frost

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer aneasurer
03/16/2017

A signed original of this written statement reqditgy Section 906 has been provided to Weis Markets,and will be retained by
Weis Markets, Inc. and furnished to the Securiied Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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